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Corporate Information

~a &S
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of REX Global Entertainment
Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) hereby presents its report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principle activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries were mainly engaged in entertainment and gaming
business, property business, gamma ray irradiation services, resources
business and securities trading and investment.

RESULTS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 51.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$278,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were additions of
HK$1,442,000 (2014: HK$51,000) to property, plant and equipment
to expand the Group's operations. Details of movements in property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2015 are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2015, calculated
under Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), amounted to HK$Nil (2014: HK$Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The following is a summary of the principle terms of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 August 2011 (the
“Scheme”).

The primary purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or reward
to the eligible persons for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Group. Under the Scheme
and subject to its terms and conditions, the board of directors of
the Company may at its discretion offer to any eligible employee,
director, or consultant, agent, supplier, customer or contractor of the
Group options to subscribe for shares in the Company. Such offer
shall be open for acceptance on a day specified in the letter of grant
which shall be no longer than 30 days from the date of the letter of
grant. The share options shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted and taken effect when the duplicate letter of grant is signed
by the eligible person and returned to the Company together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 for each acceptance of
grant of the share options.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
on the date of offer, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer, and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding vested or unvested options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time (the “Overriding Limit").

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of shareholders’ approval of Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Subject to the Overriding Limit, the Company may
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by ordinary resolution of the
shareholders in general meeting, provided that the Scheme Mandate
Limit so refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total number of issued
shares as at the date of shareholders’ approval of the refreshment.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

The maximum number of shares (issued and to be issued) in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes to any eligible person in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue,
unless a shareholders’ approval has been obtained.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
must be approved by the independent non-executive directors. Where
share options are proposed to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director, or any of their respective
associates, and the grant would result in the aggregate of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of offer of the
relevant share options to (i) represent in aggregate over 0.1% of the
total number of issued shares for the time being; and (i) have an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant shall be subject to the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting with the connected persons
abstaining from voting in favour.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme during such period as may be determined by the board of
directors (which shall not be more than 10 years commencing on
the date on which the share option is granted and accepted). Unless
otherwise determined by the Board, there is no minimum period for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised. Subject
to early termination by the Company in general meeting or the Board,
the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on its date of adoption. The Scheme will expire on 21
August 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 231,000,000 number of share
options were granted under the Scheme. The closing prices of the
Shares on 22 September 2014, being the trading date immediately
before the date of grant of such option was HK$0.168. As at the
date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
upon exercise of the options outstanding under the Scheme was
165,500,000 Shares (representing approximately 2.24% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of this report).

6 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #i5R4442[% AR A 7

B O BCRHEESN  PMER+ — {8 A B R & %5t &)
REFMEMASTER TEANRERA LT ZBRER
FRZBETRETETRNEE HZTFHEBAR
RAEBETRNEEZ1% -

FARTFARRZEE EHTHRABRTEBRRRK
EAREEEZHBEAZBRE  VABSEIIEHR
TEEZHE-MRENIERRABIFEATES
HAEREER B BB AR DB BE X RERE
HEBNBER2FEBEREZR (BFEZA) LT
18 A AR E AR %At 8 RERE B E R TSR
TERALZAABRBETEMD HTRE T HT
ZREEH)aHEEEREETRNAEZ0.1% :
R(in@EE (RERMHKETEHE)EB5,000,0008
T RRERHAERRNBREAG L AR TA
B BREALTARERERER-

BRETREESETZHR (TG BEE BE
B Mg,z A+ F) RIREBET 8 2 KT
Fo-MREEERTEEIN LE|REATEASLAR
EREREZEEHR ZTARARBRAGRESES
REHLIEPE  ZEt 8RR B Rt F 8RR
BRRESR -ZHEBR T =_—F N \A=+—HE
e

REBEZE-ZZ—AFZA=Z+—HLEE AEERE
Z st &% H1231,000,0001 BB AL - B MH R —F — 1Y
FAAZT R (NEERHZSEREZBATHR
SH)ZWMEAR0168B L - NAREAH  RIEZ
ETEIMARITEERERETERIERBTZRNAEA
165,500,000 &7 - HHE R AR E HEE BTG
#92.24% °



The following table discloses details of the movements in the share

Directors’ Report (continued)
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TEBEEREBEZASREZBEERSEE_T—0F

options granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 March A=t HIEFEZEHFE-
2015.
Number of share options
BREHA
Granted Exercised Lapsed Exercise
At during during during At price Exercisable
Category of participant 31 March 2014 the year the year the year 31 March 2015 Date of grant per share period
i B®
“E-mE “2-1f
SHEARR ZAZt-H EREH ERTR ERi%  =ZA=t-A R BH BRAEE TR
HKS
B
Directors
Ez
Wong King Shiu, Daniel - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
ERK
Lee Kuang Yeu - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
PEF
Ma Kwok Hung, Warren - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
S
Chow Siu Ngor - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
B
Wong Hoi Kuen - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
BN
Chan Chi Yuen - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
REE
Hung Hing Man - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
LEX
Employees 99,000,000 - (99,000,000 - - 27.07.2012 0.163 27.07.2012 - 26.07.2014
Es
- 178,000,000 (65,500,000) - 112,500,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
Consultants and other 185,000,000 - - (185,000,000) - 27.07.2012 0.163 27.07.2012 - 26.07.2014
eligible participants
BERAGAERSEA
- 42,000,000 - - 42,000,000 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016
284,000,000 231,000,000 (164,500,000) (185,000,000 165,500,000
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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The fair value of options granted during the year as determined by
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was approximately
HK$6,422,000. Key assumptions used in the valuation of the options
granted on 23 September 2014 include an expected volatility of share
price of 45.40% per annum, and a risk-free rate of interest of 0.09%
per annum on the date of grant. The expected volatility is based on
the historical volatility of the Company's share price over the previous
year.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was
the Company, its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year under

review and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong King Shiu, Daniel
Mr. Lee Kuang Yeu (appointed on 18 September 2014)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren
Mr. Chow Siu Ngor

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen
Mr. Hung Hing Man

In accordance with the Company's bye-law 86(2), Mr. Lee Kuang
Yeu will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 87(2), Mr. Wong King
Shiu, Daniel and Mr. Chan Chi Yuen will respectively retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Mr. Lee Kuang Yeu was
appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect
from 18 September 2014. Details of which was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 September 2014.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no changes in the information
required to be disclosed by the Directors pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS
No transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year under review.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 33 to 36 of this report.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) in
the Company

EERBETRAEZER
RZZE-RF=ZRA=+—H BEFRBERTHRAER
BEZBBARARTREREEE 2 k) - HER
NHEFTHEECHEARBTREESFLABGKIE
32 FEZERMEZBEIAR  ARE L
TABERETEFXHWEETR ([FEFH ) A
HMEARRLBBBARZABR AR (THRA])
ZHEEIBORBIT

RAELABEBREECIBIZEER (RO ZFR

Percentage of

Number of issued share capital

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held of the Company

EAEAR

EEnE EREE FEEROEE ERTRABDL

Wong King Shiu, Daniel Beneficial owner 1,802,039 0.02%
=P EmEAA

Ma Kwok Hung, Warren Beneficial owner 750,000 0.01%
5B EmEAA

Chow Siu Ngor Beneficial owner 3,750,000 0.05%
2/ME ERfEB A

Chan Chi Yuen Beneficial owner 3,750,000 0.05%

BREE

i}

TEEA A

\
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Long position in share options in the Company

Name of Director

ESpR

Nature of interest

EEME

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Wong King Shiu, Daniel

'K

Lee Kuang Yeu

FET

Ma Kwok Hung, Warren

55 E %

Chow Siu Ngor
HNE

Wong Hoi Kuen
=2

Chan Chi Yuen
R &R

Hung Hing Man
LEX

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review, the

Beneficial owner

BEHBEAA

Beneficial owner

BEHERA

Beneficial owner

BEHBEAA

Beneficial owner

BHERA

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Beneficial owner

BEHERA

Beneficial owner

BEHBEAA

Directors or chief executives had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its other associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

RAERRBREZTR
Percentage of
Number of issued share capital
share options held of the Company
EADH
FisABRESR ERTREBS L
3,000,000 0.04%
3,000,000 0.04%
1,000,000 0.01%
1,000,000 0.01%
1,000,000 0.01%
1,000,000 0.01%
1,000,000 0.01%

BEXHBEEIN REBEFERNEFER- é%&‘
BEITHASBEN AR R s H F 0 H AR5
(ERRELZLRPBHIIEXVEBREFER Tﬂ:ﬁ‘l(%
622;))2&% BB RO X E ST EALRERE

HEHRHEGRINERGAFE 2B L2 EM#
ﬁnjz (R RRBIRETRAMNEG NR R MR Z
EAEDIORAE -
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the following
parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the Shares in the Company

FERRZERS

RIZ-—RF=ZA=+—HB BRAQXFAREZF KLY
BEI&HIFE336RRERATEZECMALE THA
T (RARREERRZRRTHRABIN RARA RN
RAAMBR D P EEZERIORRNT

REQXARBZHR

Percentage of
Number of issued share capital

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held of the Company
EERAR S BT
BEER R EREE FEEROEE BRATD
Chan How Chung, Victor Beneficial owner/interest of 1,660,554,564 22.47%
PR Z 1A controlled corporation (Note 1)
EwlEB AN/ T EEER (Htit1)
Mega Market Assets Limited Beneficial owner 1,108,496,377 15.00%
EmER A (Note 2)
(Hfazz)
Li Wing Sang Beneficial owner/interest of 900,000,000 12.18%
FoKAE controlled corporation (Note 3)
ERBAANZEEDER (Ht7#3)
Wong Ngai Deemed 900,000,000 12.18%
T WIERBE#ER (Note 4)
(Htita)
Hondex Investments Limited Beneficial owner 750,000,000 10.15%
EmER A (Note 5)
(Kt7t5)
Chung Chi Chu Beneficial owner 539,826,016 7.30%
5 ERBAA
Notes: Mt -

1. Mr. Chan How Chung, Victor had a personal interest in 408,808,187
Shares, and was taken to be interested in (i) 1,108,496,377 Shares held
by Mega Market Assets Limited; and (ii) 143,250,000 Shares held by
Kingly Profits Corporation. Kingly Profits Corporation was wholly owned
by Smart Ease Corporation, which in turn, was wholly owned by Mr.
Chan.

1 2 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #l5R4442[% AR A 7

1. BREFRKLHERA08,808,187R M P HEH B AR
I 4% 17 A7) Mega Market Assets Limitedffi#5 A &
1,108,496,377 8% f& 17 : K.(ii) Kingly Profits Corporation
FT#% 8 2143,250,000/% i {5 7 # 5 # 2 ° Kingly Profits
CorporationfSmart Ease CorporationZ & # A © M
Smart Ease Corporationf| L2 B A ©



2. Mega Market Assets Limited was interested in 1,108,496,377 Shares.
Mega Market Assets Limited was beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chan
How Chung, Victor. These interests had been included in the interests
held by Mr. Chan disclosed in this section.

3. Mr. Li Wing Sang had a personal interest in 150,000,000 Shares, and was
taken to be interested in 750,000,000 Shares held by Hondex Investments
Limited. Hondex Investments Limited was beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. Li.

4. Ms. Wong Ngai was the spouse of Mr. Li Wing Sang, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and therefore was deemed to be interested
in the 900,000,000 Shares which were beneficially owned by Mr. Li.
These interests had been included in the interests held by Mr. Li disclosed
in this section.

5. Hondex Investments Limited was beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Li
Wing Sang. These interests had been included in the interests held by Mr.
Li disclosed in this section.

Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2015, the
Company had not been notified of any other person who had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group made approximately
85% of its entire sales to five largest customers and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately 82%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 59% of the total purchases for the year ended 31
March 2015 and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 20%.

None of the Directors, or any of their respective associates or any
other shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers
during the year under review.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In October 2011, the Company issued the 1% unsecured convertible
note to Mega Market Assets Limited with principal amount of
HK$105,000,000 in a term of 3 years (the “Convertible Note"). The
issue of the Convertible Note and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted non-exempt connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions are set
out in the Company’s 2012 Annual Report.

During the year under review, Mega Market Assets Limited has
transferred the Convertible Note in the principal amount of
HK$105,000,000 to certain independent third parties who are
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as same
meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules), and are not connected
persons of the Company.

Particular of other transactions with related parties of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements. Those transactions were exempted connected
transactions for the Company or did not fall under the definition
of “connect transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2015 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

1 4 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #li5R4442[% AR A 7

HEXGREBEALZRS

RZT——F+ A KA FMAMega Market Assets
Limited# 777X € % /105,000,000 7T 7 = F H11%
BEMRTRRER (TAITRRER]) ST RKRE
T)%&TEEE%&LGZX%%}?XLm%ﬁE‘J%JrV_EIAEZT\
BHRABUERG RGHABHNEARAZ _E—ZF
F®RA -

Mega Market Assets LimitedB R EEEERNAE T
BURARBIREBBEALT (AELWARMETZ
HERE) BEXFARBNBEATZBYE=7H
EA &% 4A105,000,000/ 0 2 AT AR =K

RE 2 EF=ZA=+—HLFEELEEHA
A 22 5 5 15 80 B 7 SRR MY 36 o
ATZE%%E@@?&% PSR ABR L

BEEHEZ BERS | X HEMER

+ 3
E%N

EEMAARAEETLETRAUETOARZ Z HER

RITRHEMEE
AEERTEREMEENR T —AF=A=+—82
FBEHN MR M 25

ABERE
WEAHARBRHAEMZER REFHMA RE
E-ZT-—HF=A=+—HLEFE ARABETE
ABEARI25%HARBALER-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Key Corporate Development

The financial year 2014/2015 was an eventful year for us. Amid
optimistic outlook for the tourism, leisure, entertainment and
gaming industries in the region, the Group achieved another major
milestone and established Entertainment and Gaming Division during
the year under review. We were pleased that this division achieved
remarkable performance within such short time span since its
commencement of operation, and has become the major revenue and
earnings contributor to the Group. The division recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$74,696,000 (2014: HK$Nil), accounting for
93% of the Group’s total revenue, and a profit of approximately
HK$16,598,000 (2014: HK$Nil) during the year.

Our first initiative in Entertainment and Gaming Division is cruise ship
business. Through the Group’s investment in Star Sail Investments
Limited (the “JV Company”), we completed the acquisition of a
10% interest of a cruise ship at HK$93,000,000 and have been
appointed as the manager of the cruise ship. After completion of
the acquisition, the cruise ship was renamed as “REX Fortune”, and
the Group commenced its cruise ship business in late August 2014
by providing services in respect of certain management functions
and core operation of the cruise ship. These services include crew
management, technical management, commercial management,
insurance arrangements etc. REX Fortune is a nine-deck cruise ship,
and features with over 200 passenger rooms which can accommodate
over 600 passengers. It provides various entertainment and gaming
facilities and on-board activities, services and amenities such as
restaurants, lounge, beauty salons and retail shopping.

In order to better reflect the future business development of the
Group, the English name of the Company has been changed from
“China Gamma Group Limited” to "REX Global Entertainment
Holdings Limited” and the Chinese name “#f5 1R 445 it B R A F"
has been adopted as the secondary name of the Company in October
2014.

The Group also completed the disposal of the business of & 28 8%
B TR ERDQE (Mianning Mao Yuan Rare Earth Technology
Company Limited*) (“Mianning Mao Yuan"), our rare earth refinery
and processing business in China, in February 2015 in view of
persistent weak demand and low price of rare earth products since
August 2012 and the uncertain prospects of the rare earth market.
The Group recorded net proceeds of HK$57,364,000 and a loss of
HK$25,183,000 from such disposal.
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During the year under review, the Group's operating results
have improved remarkably. The Group's revenue surged 96% to
HK$80,564,000 in comparison to last year. Loss from operations
before impairment loss and disposal loss related to rare earth
operation was reduced to HK$4,040,000 from HK$24,463,000 last
year. Although the cruise ship business only commenced its operation
in late August 2014, the operation has been ramping up smoothly
and has made significant contribution to the Group’s revenue and
operation income during the year under review. A positive gain from
the securities trading and investment business also contributed to the
improvement.

Our financial position has further been strengthened during the year
under review. In September 2014, the Group completed a rights issue
program which received overwhelming support from shareholders and
successfully raised net proceeds of approximately HK$146,502,000
(after deduction of related expenses). In addition, the convertible note
in the principal amount of HK$105,000,000 was fully converted into
issued shares on 13 October 2014. The completion of the disposal
of the business of Mianning Mao Yuan in February 2015 improved
the Group's overall cashflow by the net proceeds from the disposal
of HK$57,364,000 and the release of debts of HK$281,504,000
which mature in June 2015. Such debts and guarantees provided by
the Company to the lenders of the debts have been released and no
interest expense was incurred for the debts. As a result, the Group’s
gearing ratio was substantially reduced to 39% as at 31 March 2015
from 83% as at 31 March 2014.

For the year ahead, the Group will continue to eye on new
opportunities and to diversify into businesses which provide steady
income stream with high growth potential on the one hand, and
on the other hand to rationalise its resources through continuous
evaluation and review of its business operations. The Group
will continue to put resources in and focus on development of
Entertainment and Gaming Division. Other than exploration of
opportunities in investment in and operation of cruise ships, hotel
and gaming related businesses in the region and elsewhere, the
Group will also look into potential investment in operation of online
game development and distribution business across various platforms
including web portals and mobile devices. All these initiatives show
our determination to further improve the Company's long term
profitability.
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Business Review

During the year under review, the Group is mainly engaged in
entertainment and gaming business, property business, gamma ray
irradiation services, resources business and securities trading and
investment.

Entertainment and Gaming Business

With an aim to diversify into businesses providing steady income
stream to enhance shareholders’ return in the long run, the Group
has set up the Entertainment and Gaming Division during the year
under review to explore opportunities in leisure, hospitality, tourism,
entertainment and gaming related areas. Our first initiative in this
division is the cruise ship business. As disclosed in the Company'’s
announcement dated 2 July 2014, Oceanic Eagle Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Norvest Global Limited
formed the JV Company to acquire a cruise ship at a consideration of
HK$93,000,000 by late August 2014. The JV Company was held as
to 90% by Norvest Global Limited and as to 10% by the Group. After
completion of the acquisition, the cruise ship was renamed as “REX
Fortune”, and the Group commenced its cruise ship business in late
August 2014 by providing services in respect of certain management
functions and core operation of the cruise ship. These services include
crew management, technical management, commercial management,
insurance arrangements etc. As the manager of REX Fortune, the
Group received income from the room sales, boat fares, meals, duty
free sales etc. and management fees from the casino operator who
manages the casino operation of the cruise ship as remuneration for
its services.

Since the commencement of the cruise ship business in late August
2014, the Group together with its JV partner took several initiatives
to upgrade the facilities of REX Fortune to enrich our customers’
cruise experiences. REX Fortune went for a 10-day annual docking
in late November 2014 for repairs and maintenance. A number of
renovations were made on the cruise, including the refurbishment
of the lounge on the deck, deluxe and suite guest rooms and the
upgrade of gaming facilities. New facilities such as children corner
and gymnasium were also introduced. In addition, the Group has
implemented new marketing strategies and networks to bring in new
customers, and is developing new membership system to increase
business volume from our current customers. With such efforts,
number of guests on board of REX Fortune has been ramping up and
the total number was over 21,500 since commencement of operation
in August 2014 to March 2015, and the division recorded a revenue
of HK$74,696,000 (2014: HK$Nil) and a profit of approximately
HK$16,598,000 (2014: HK$Nil) during the said period.
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Property Business

The Group's property business includes property development, trading
of building materials and provision of renovation services. During
the year under review, the Group has not launched new property
projects for sale and revenue of property business was HK$26,000
(2014: HK$1,011,000). Segment loss was HK$1,920,000 (2014:
HK$694,000). Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore
mixed use property development and investment opportunities in
China and in other regions.

Gamma Ray Irradiation Services

The Group’s gamma ray irradiation business is conducted through
MEARS BB M AR QR (Zibo Liyuan Gamma Ray
Technologies Co. Limited*), a 80% owned subsidiary of the Group
which is licensed by Ministry of Environmental Protection of the
PRC for the provision of irradiation services by utilising gamma ray
technologies. Although global economic recovery remained slow
during the year under review, demand for food irradiation and
sterilisation of medical devices using gamma ray technologies had
shown signs of stabilisation. The Group adjusted its product mix
after conducting immense market and industry research. We also
increased marketing effort in strengthening business relation with
existing and new customers. Revenue generated from the gamma
ray irradiation services for the year under review was HK$5,842,000
(2014: HK$5,906,000). Segment loss was HK$2,565,000 (2014:
HK$2,565,000).

Resources Business

The resources division’s first project of rare earth refinery and
processing business in China is conducted through &% & X JR# +
B AR A A (Mianning Mao Yuan Rare Earth Technology Company
Limited*), a 54% owned subsidiary of the Group. It operates a major
rare earth refinery and processing plant situated in Mianning, Sichuan
province. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
3 February 2015, the Group completed the disposal of the business
of Mianning Mao Yuan and no longer holds any equity interest in

Mianning Mao Yuan.

As the demand and price of rare earth products have fallen sharply
since August 2012, and the prospects of the rare earth market
remained uncertain, upon reviewing the performance of the rare
earth refinery and processing business in 2013, the Group started
to rationalise the resources business by considering the possibilities
of restructuring the rare earth refinery and processing business, and
made a plan to sell the subsidiaries that engaged in the rare earth
refinery and processing business if the assets value would be better
reflected by such a sale transaction. Since then, the Group has been

actively looking for potential buyers.
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In June 2014, a non-binding letter of intent was entered into between
the potential buyer and a subsidiary of the Company. They further
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in November 2014 which
was approved by the shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 13 January 2015. Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
total consideration for the disposal of the business of Mianning Mao
Yuan was HK$340,000,000 in which (i) HK$280,000,000 was for the
assignment of the shareholder loan; and (ii) the remaining proceeds of
HK$60,000,000 was for the disposal.

During the year under review, revenue from the segment was
HK$Nil (2014: HK$34,101,000). In the first half of the year under
review, in view of the persistent weak downstream demand for
rare earth products and relatively high raw material costs, the
Group decided to halt its rare earth oxides production temporarily
in order to reduce losses incurred by the business. The Group also
reviewed the net asset value of the rare earth refinery and processing
business and recognised an impairment loss on assets classified as
held for sale which amounted to HK$22,613,000 (2014: HK$Nil).
After the disposal of the business of Mianning Mao Yuan, the
Group recorded gross proceeds of HK$58,496,000 (net proceeds of
HK$57,364,000 after deduction of related expenses) and a disposal
loss of HK$25,183,000. The segment reported a loss of approximately
HK$52,014,000 (2014: HK$3,559,000) after the recognition of an
impairment loss and the disposal loss as mentioned above.

Other Operation

The Group’s other operation is represented by securities trading
and investment business. During the year under review, Hong Kong
stock markets improved along with China and other markets in Asia.
Both unrealised and realised gains on equity investments held for
trading contributed to a reported gain of HK$12,423,000 to the
securities trading and investment business division (2014: a loss of
HK$176,000). The division’s trading in Hong Kong listed securities
increased during the year given the improvement in overall market
conditions of the Hong Kong and Chinese stock markets, and there
being a substantial increase in market turnover and activities during
the same period. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of the
listed securities was HK$110,752,000 (2014: HK$19,604,000). The
rise was mainly due to an increase in both stock holding quantity and
stock value as at the end of the reporting period.
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Major Risks of the Group
The followings were identified as the major risks of the Group during
the year under review.

Market economy

The Group currently operates its business principally in Hong Kong/
China. Any significant change in or worsening of the economic
conditions in Hong Kong and surrounding regions may have adverse
impacts on consumption spending and demand for our services.

Rising costs of fuel

Fuel cost plays a major part of operating costs in our cruise ship
business. A sharp rise in energy prices and thus fuel cost may
adversely affect the financial performance of the Group.

Strategic partners

The Group conducts business through non wholly-owned subsidiaries
and joint ventures, and has formed alliances with strategic partners.
There can be no assurance that any of these strategic partners will
wish to continue their relationships with the Group in the future. In
addition, other investors in the non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group and joint ventures may undergo a change of control, which
may affect the operation and financial condition of the Group.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk for the equity
investments held by the Group which are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Majority of the Group’s equity
securities are listed on the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted
market prices as at 31 March 2015.

Financial risks

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk associated with our
borrowings that bear interest based on floating rates, and to foreign
currency risk with RMB in particular.

Corporate Environmental and Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its various
businesses and recognizes the importance of the views and interests
of its stakeholders such as employees, customers, shareholders,
regulators and the public in making its business decisions.
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Environmental protection

The Group is committed to minimizing the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental
protection programs. Management established environmental
policy and communicated measurable environmental objectives and
targets on energy and paper consumption. In particular, a number
of initiatives designed to conserve resources, including paper recycle
and electricity conservation, were introduced to promote employee
awareness of the need to achieve efficient utilization of resources.
In addition, measures were taken to reduce paper consumption in
offices. These should help building a sustainable environment for us.

Responsible gaming

As the manager of the cruise ship REX Fortune, the Group received
income from the room sales, boat fares, meals, duty free sales etc.
and management fees from the casino operator who manages the
casino operation of the cruise ship. We recognize the importance of
responsible gaming to the community and customers that we serve.
The Group is committed to implement high standard of responsible
gaming practices together with the casino operator, and to provide
a safe and responsible gaming environment so as to minimize the
potential negative effects of gaming activities.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
that govern the way we go about our business. We aim to maintain
a reputable record of high compliance of these regulations. At the
request of the ship owner of REX Fortune (the JV Company), who has
established risk-based approach policies to ensure compliance with
anti-money laundering regulations in relation to casino operation
on the cruise ship, the Group has adopted relevant anti-money
laundering procedures since commencement of cruise ship business.
Appropriate processes are communicated to relevant employees
to ensure compliance with anti-money laundering policies and
procedures. In addition, the Group has appointed a compliance officer

to oversee compliance with all relevant regulations.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
throughout the year.

Employees care and training

The Group promotes the long-term development of its employees.
In-house training programs are organized for new staff to familiarize
them with the industry. The Group also aims to provide a healthy and
safe workplace for all employees. In particular, the Group engages
with employees to address occupational safety issues. For example,
usage of life-boat training is given to cruise ship employees.
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The Group also encourages employees to take part in work-life
balance activities and community service. These include employee
outings, sports events and community volunteering.

Community involvement

The Group is committed to being a responsible member of the
community and aims to make a positive impact on the local
community. In February 2015, we held a family cruise visit to
celebrate the Chinese New Year with grass-roots families. Over 35
families with more than 100 people got aboard REX Fortune and had
a tour of different facilities of the cruise ship. We also sponsored a
number of sports activities and charitable events, including North
District Football Club, the National Day celebration with the elderlies,
“Bank of America Merrill Lynch 2014 Annual Charity Golf Day”, and
“the Power of Love 4th Live to Give Charity Run”.

Prospect

The Group made significant progress for the year ended 31 March
2015. With the commencement of the cruise ship business under
Entertainment and Gaming Division, the Group’s operating results
have improved remarkably. As cruises have become a popular type
of leisure activity and offer alternative hospitality, the Group is highly
confident of the prospect and the long term development of the
cruise ship business. Thus, the Group and the JV partner will continue
to upgrade the cruise’ facilities for enrichment of customers’ cruise
experiences. We will continue the renovation program to refurbish the
guest rooms, and plan to add an audio room for our customers to rest
and relax. We also plan to bring in new slot machines for customers’
enjoyment. We will strike to enhance our high quality food and
service offerings to the customers. The Group will conduct targeted
marketing to various customer groups through our new membership
program. We also plan to adjust our product mix and extend our
services for meeting and events, wedding and different sorts of
celebrations. As the majority of our customers are local residents, the
Group plans to optimize customer mix through partnership with travel

agents to bring in new customers in the region.
Following such operation strategy, the Group believes that the

cruise ship business will optimize its operation and make significant
contribution to the Group in the future.
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Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore opportunities
in tourism, leisure, entertainment and gaming industries which are
rapidly growing in Asia on the back of an increase in consumption
power in the region. Amongst tourism, leisure, entertainment
and gaming industries, the Group is also optimistic on the long-
term growth of the online game sector as we see better internet
infrastructure development and improvement of customers’
willingness to pay for games in the region will drive market growth
in the near future. As to mid-to-long term strategy, the Group will
not only focus on exploration of opportunities in investment in and
operation of cruise ships, hotel and gaming related businesses in the
region and elsewhere, but also will look into potential investment
in operation of online game development and distribution business
across various platforms, including web portals and mobile devices.
The Group believes that these developments will provide a stable
recurring revenue stream to the Group, and hence will create long-
term returns to its shareholders.

As for property business, the Group will continue to focus on mixed
use property development and investment in China to cater for end-
users’ demand for high quality residential and commercial properties
as urbanisation continues to drive demand for property in China. The
Group will continue to devote resources to land bank acquisitions
and seek to identify premium land sites at the right opportunity. The
Group will also explore opportunities in property development and
investment in other regions to support the development of our other
businesses.

In regards to gamma ray irradiation business, as application of gamma
ray technologies in food irradiation and sterilisation of medical
devices have increased in recent years with increasing awareness of
domestic food safety and higher hygiene standard, the Group will
endeavor in ongoing services innovation, expansion of its services
to new products with high margins, and sourcing of new clients.
We plan to strengthen our services in sterilisation of medical devices
and discussions with new clients in this area are in progress. The
Group will also strive to improve the productivity and efficiency of its
production facilities.

As for resources business, the Group has been continually exploring
into different opportunities in the whole value chain in the industry.
Current downturn in the resources industry may provide opportunities
to the Group to invest in potential resources projects at attractive

valuation.
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Financial Review

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group took several initiatives
to further improve the Group's liquidity and strengthen its financial
base.

In September 2014, the Company successfully completed the rights
issue of 2,198,840,745 rights shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.068 per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every
two existing ordinary shares of the Company held on the record date
by the qualifying shareholders of the Company as defined in the
rights issue prospectus dated 19 August 2014 (the “Rights Issue”),
and raised a gross proceeds of approximately HK$149,521,000 (net
proceeds of approximately HK$146,502,000 after deduction of
related expenses).

In August 2014, the Company entered into a placing agreement to
renew the placing period for the placing of 7-year 5% unsecured
notes up to 31 August 2015, as the original placing agreement had
expired. Under the original placing agreement, the placing notes
with aggregate principal amount of up to HK$300,000,000 could
be issued. As the issued notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 have been issued by the Company, the Company
proposed to further issue the placing notes in the remaining principal
amount of up to HK$280,000,000. During the year under review, the
gross proceeds raised from the placing notes was HK$10,000,000 (net
proceeds of approximately HK$9,500,000). As at 31 March 2015, the
issued notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$30,000,000
have been issued by the Company.

In addition, the completion of the disposal of the business of
Mianning Mao Yuan in February 2015 improved the Group's overall
cashflow by the net proceeds from the disposal of HK$57,364,000
and the release of debts of HK$281,504,000 which mature in June
2015. Such debts and guarantees provided by the Company to the
lenders of the debts have been released and no interest expense has
been incurred for the debts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has utilised the
net proceeds from the Rights Issue and the placing notes as
to approximately 31% for development of and investment in
entertainment and gaming business, approximately 17% for the
working capital of the cruise ship operation services, approximately
21% for the repayment of the Group’s other borrowings and the
remaining proceeds for general working capital of the Group's
operation and other new business opportunities. As the convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$105,000,000 was fully converted
into issued shares on 13 October 2014, none of the remaining
proceeds from the Rights Issue was applied to settle the redemption
amount for the convertible note. Thus the Group plans to apply
the remaining proceeds for development of and investment in
entertainment and gaming business and other new business
opportunities, as well as for the reduction of the Group's debt and
liabilities.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$80,564,000 (2014: HK$41,018,000), representing a surge of 96%
compared to the previous year. The surge was mainly attributable to
meaningful contribution from the entertainment and gaming business
since the commencement of the cruise ship operation in late August
2014.

Loss from operations for the year under review amounted to
HK$51,836,000 (2014: HK$24,463,000). Net loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for the year under review
increased to HK$67,899,000 (2014: HK$51,471,000), which was
mainly attributable to a loss of approximately HK$52,014,000 from
the resources business after the recognition of an impairment loss and
the disposal loss. As at 31 March 2015, the total assets and net assets
of the Group were HK$374,321,000 and HK$231,841,000 (2014:
HK$925,268,000 and HK$196,179,000) respectively. The Board does
not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 31 March
2015.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has raised net proceeds of
approximately HK$146,502,000 from the Rights Issue and
HK$9,500,000 from the placing notes for development of and
investment in entertainment and gaming business, general
working capital of the Group’s operation and other new business
opportunities. As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of HK$106,505,000 (2014: HK$33,453,000). Short term
bank and other borrowings, long term bank and other borrowings
and liability component of the convertible note as at 31 March 2015
were HK$51,333,000 (2014: HK$10,063,000), HK$38,304,000 (2014:
HK$52,044,000) and HK$Nil (2014: HK$101,272,000) respectively.
The gearing ratio, being the ratio of the sum of total borrowings
and convertible note to total equity, was 39% as at 31 March 2015
(2014: 83%). The liquidity ratio, being the ratio of current assets
over current liabilities, was 386% as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
133%). The improvement in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the
successful completion of the Rights Issue and the full conversion of
the convertible note into issued shares. In order to further improve
the Group’s liquidity and to increase its working capital, the Company
has been considering different fund raising and capital restructuring
options so as to strengthen the Group's financial base.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s land use rights and certain property,
plant and equipment with carrying amount of approximately
HK$17,020,000 (2014: HK$17,928,000) were pledged to a bank to
secure the bank borrowing granted to the Group.

At 31 March 2015, the Group's listed securities with carrying amount
of approximately HK$109,532,000 (2014: HK$Nil) were pledged to
secure margin account payable granted to the Group.

Share Capital
164,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) were issued
and allotted during the year under review upon exercise of share

options granted by the Company.

As a result of the Rights Issue being completed on 11 September
2014, 2,198,840,745 Shares were allotted and issued to qualifying
shareholders of the Company as defined in the Company’s rights issue
prospectus dated on 19 August 2014 (“Rights Issue Prospectus”).
Details of which are set out in the Rights Issue Prospectus and
announcements of the Company dated 13 July 2014 and 10
September 2014 respectively.
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729,673,382 Shares were issued and allotted during the year
upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Note. Share premium increased by approximately HK$116,055,000
accordingly.

As at 31 March 2015, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 7,391,695,617.

Save as the above, there was no change in the share capital structure
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Convertible Note

In October 2011, the Company issued a convertible note to Mega
Market Assets Limited (“Mega Market”). The convertible note bear
interest at the rate of 1% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears
("Convertible Note”). Each Convertible Note will be convertible into
fully paid ordinary Shares at the conversion price of HK$0.2158 per
Share of the Company (as adjusted by completion of subscription of
new shares by way of capitalisation of loan on 27 September 2013),
subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Convertible Note. As a result of the issuance of Shares under
the Rights Issue, the conversion price of the Convertible Note has
been adjusted from HK$0.2158 per Share to HK$0.1439 per Share
(the "Adjusted Conversion Price”). Each Convertible Note will be
convertible into fully paid Shares at the Adjusted Conversion Price of
HK$0.1439 per Share upon conversion.

During the year under review, Mega Market has transferred the
Convertible Note in the principal amount of HK$105,000,000 to
certain independent third parties. Thereafter, the Convertible Note in
the principal amount of HK$105,000,000 has been fully exercised by
the relevant noteholders, and an aggregate of 729,673,382 Shares
have been issued and allotted accordingly. There is no outstanding
Convertible Note as at 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$105,000,000).

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2015, the Group had no significant capital
commitments. At 31 March 2014, the Group had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the purchase of plant and machinery
amounting to approximately HK$352,000.
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Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2015, the Company had no significant contingent
liabilities. At 31 March 2014, the Company had given guarantees to
two lenders in respect of other borrowings utilised by a subsidiary
to an extent of HK$325,002,000. The Directors did not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Company under any of
the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at 31 March
2014 under the guarantees by the Company was the aggregate
amount of the borrowings drawn down by the subsidiary and the
outstanding interest payable. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
value of these guarantees was not significant. After completion of the
Disposal, the guarantees provided by the Company to the lenders of

the other borrowings have been released.

Other than those mentioned above, the Group had no other
significant contingent liabilities at end of both reporting periods.

Exposure to Exchange Rate Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group did not enter into any foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge against exchange rates fluctuations.
Foreign exchange risk arising from the normal course of operations is
considered to be minimal and the management will closely monitor
the fluctuation in the currency and take appropriate actions when

condition arises.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as both the borrowings of the Group
and the interest rates currently remain at low levels.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July 2014,
the Group formed the JV Company with Norvest Global Limited to
acquire a cruise ship at a consideration of HK$93,000,000, and the
JV Company was held as to 90% by Norvest Global Limited and as to
10% by the Group.

On 19 November 2014, the Company and Penrith Resources Limited
entered into a sale and purchase agreement for the disposal of the
entire issued share capital of Jumbo Wealth International Limited
("Jumbo Wealth"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and
the assignment of the shareholder loan granted by the Company to
Jumbo Wealth to Penrith Resources Limited, at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$340,000,000. Details of the transaction were set
out in the Company’s announcement and circular dated 27 November
2014 and 23 December 2014 respectively. The transaction was
completed in February 2015.
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Save as disclosed herein, the Group had no material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Litigations

On 24 October 2007, Silver Wind International Limited ("”Silver
Wind"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
conditional agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Stronway
Development Limited (“Stronway Development”), pursuant to which
Silver Wind agreed to acquire from Stronway Development the entire
equity interest in Winmax Asia Investment Limited (“Winmax Asia”).
Under the arrangement, Winmax Asia would in turn acquire the
entire equity interest in Beijing Jianxing Real Estate Development
Co. ("Jianxing”) along with Jianxing's standalone villas development
project in Beijing known as “¥7Z J£[&". The aggregate consideration
payable for the acquisition was RMB433,000,000 which was to be
settled in cash, and two villas. In December 2007, RMB20,000,000
was paid under the Acquisition Agreement to Stronway Development
by Silver Wind as deposit (the “Deposit”). Details of the acquisition
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 14 December 2007.

In April 2008, on the grounds, amongst other things, that the
subject matter under the Acquisition Agreement was frustrated,
Silver Wind decided to terminate the Acquisition Agreement and,
through its legal representative has served a notice of termination to
Stronway Development. In order to protect the position of Silver Wind
and to recover, amongst other things, the Deposit from Stronway
Development, the legal proceedings were instigated against Stronway
Development on this matter in the High Court of Hong Kong on
15 April 2008. As at the date hereof, the legal proceedings against
Stronway Development are still pending and there is no significant

development.

After due consideration of the matter without prejudice to the
position and rights of the Group, the Board has decided not to
proceed with the legal proceedings at this stage.

Employee and Emolument Policy
As at 31 March 2015, the Group employed 305 employees (2014:
151).

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to
market terms and individual merits. Salaries are reviewed periodically
based on performance appraisal and other relevant factors. Staff
benefits plans maintained by the Group include medical insurance,
hospitalisation scheme, mandatory provident fund and share option
scheme. Employees in the PRC are remunerated according to the
prevailing market conditions in the locations of their employments.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Board, as authorised by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$Nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not, throughout
the year, in compliance with the code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) under the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except the following deviations:

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out
in writing. The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor
a Chief Executive. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities
of a Chairman and a Chief Executive are currently held by separate
individuals with written guidelines for the division of responsibilities
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties between
the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business and operations. The Company will continue
to review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance
structure and consider the appointment of a Chairman of the
Board and a Chief Executive if candidates with suitable leadership,
knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or outside
the Group.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, the
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are
subject to retirement by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting as specified in the Company’s bye-laws.

Further information on the corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 37 to 48.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management and the Company’s external auditors, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
auditing, internal control and financial reporting process including the
review of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDITOR

By a resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 September 2014, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA
Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill
the vacancy arising from the retirement of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan as a result of their internal corporate structure reorganisation.
Details of the change of auditor are, among other things, set out
in the Company's circular dated 7 July 2014 and the Company's
announcements dated 27 June 2014 and 12 September 2014
respectively.

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

By a resolution passed at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 29 October 2014, the English name of the Company has
been changed from “China Gamma Group Limited” to “REX Global
Entertainment Holdings Limited” and the Company has adopted the
Chinese name “fHl)RIRZEIZER AR A A" as secondary name of the
Company to replace the Chinese name “# B35 £ E AR A A" with
effect from 29 October 2014.

The stock short name for trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange
has also been changed from “CHINA GAMMA" to “REXGLOBAL ENT”
in English and from “FR B35 to "Ml RIREE" in Chinese with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on 1 December 2014. The stock code of the Company
remains unchanged.

The website of the Company has been changed from “http://www.
aplushk.com/clients/00164chinagamma/index.html” to “http://www.
aplushk.com/clients/00164rex-ent/index.html” to reflect the change of
company name with effect from 1 December 2014.

Details of the change of company name are, among other things,
set out in the Company’s circular dated 3 October 2014 and the
Company’s announcements dated 11 September 2014, 29 October
2014 and 26 November 2014.

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

EREEE
ARBBEZZEGCHAEREERARBIINEZEY
EMAEEMRRAZ G RAREH AR H
ZH RNAEEREBRREF BEREHEE-Z
—HF=R=t+—BHIFEZHB®E-

3 4]
REBEARANR-_ZF-OFAA+-ABTZEERR
FRELBEZAER TABRSFAMEBEMAR
RACEZERARB 2R AEHT FEARS
FETTEABCERBEAMRERMELEZZR &
BREMZFERR (AR EBE)ARRAEHRA T
—OFEtAEBZBHARARRBHASN R T
—MESAAZTHEARZZE-—HEAATZBZAM
o

TRERESFTMEBHAERARERME LA ERAR
EEEET-BRERRBFASLHREZRAZR &
BTAERSAMELAER DB /AR A ZEED -

ERAFER
BEARAFARZZ—WHFTAZFTILARTZERR
BAE TBB2RBR ARARIZEXEEEH
[China Gamma Group Limited | 244 [REX Global
Entertainment Holdings Limited ] + 3f BR 4%/ 2 & 78
[HRIREIERBER AR BARQFE ZE = FHUER
REEz2PXEBIHEMSEEBSRAF] - B=F
—mNE+A=-FTABBER-

BRORBIMETEEZCRXRMNMEBIIE &
[CHINA GAMMA ] # & % [REXGLOBAL ENTJ - fi#
XBRHEEAB HERME] 2F A TERRE] 8
ZE-NFF+_A-—BLEFARERER - ARAZ
AR PR 5% 4 F5 18 o

ARBERAREE RNQAFEUE B [http//www.
aplushk.com/clients/00164chinagamma/index.html | & 2t
7 [ http://www.aplushk.com/clients/00164rex-ent/index.
html |- B =Z WM&+ =4 —HRER-

ERABAHEzHABRN (AP RFB)ARAFAME
TE-NFETAZHZBRARAAT BB AR -
T-NEAA+—B ZE—WOF+AZTNAARZ
T-OF+—AZ+RBZAMA-

Annual Report 2015 —Z—RAFFHR 3 1



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY"’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's
listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the
Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and professional
advisors for their support of the Company over the past year and to
sincerely thank the staff for their ongoing dedication and contribution
made in the year.

On behalf of the Board

Wong King Shiu, Daniel
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015

* The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong King Shiu, Daniel, aged 55, joined the Board on 13
January 2012. Prior to that, Mr. Wong has been the vice president
of the Group since 2010. He is responsible for the overall strategic
management, development and marketing of the resources projects.
Mr. Wong has over 13 years of experience in natural resources
industry and served as an executive director in a various natural
resources company which is listed in Hong Kong. He also has
extensive experience in the management and development of natural
resources projects in China.

Mr. Lee Kuang Yeu, aged 72, joined the Board on 18 September
2014. Mr. Lee graduated from Chu Hai College in business
administration. He has extensive experience in the entertainment
and gaming industry, and in marketing, especially of financial and
investment products. Mr. Lee has worked in the management of
entertainment business since 1980s and the gaming sector since
1997 and was responsible for the management and development
of a casino in Macau. Mr. Lee was an executive director of Ceneric
(Holdings) Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, from 14
November 2012 to 30 April 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren, aged 58, joined the Board on 24
July 2006. He had been an executive director of the Company since
24 July 2006 and had been redesignated to non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 23 May 2008. Prior to that, Mr.
Ma served as an executive director and a company secretary of a
Hong Kong listed company for over 7 years. He has over 25 years of
accounting experience and is an associate member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chow Siu Ngor, aged 59, joined the Board on 30 April 2006.
He had been an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 30 April 2006 and had been redesignated to non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 20 November 2007. He is
a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981 with an honors degree in
Social Science. He then obtained an honors degree in Laws from the
University of Birmingham in England in 1987. Mr. Chow was admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1990 and has
been in private practice since then. Currently, Mr. Chow is a Partner
of King & Wood Mallesons, Solicitors, Hong Kong. He serves as an
independent non-executive director of CCT Fortis Holdings Limited,
CCT Land Holdings Limited and REXLot Holdings Limited, all of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, aged 54, joined the Board on 13 February
2006. He is a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong
and a chartered accountant in the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He also serves as an independent non-executive
director of Sino Resources Group Limited, a listed company in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, aged 48, joined the Board on 30 April 2006.
He holds a bachelor degree in Business Administration and a master
of science degree in Corporate Governance and Directorship. He
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Chan is a practicing certified public
accountant and has extensive experience in accounting, taxation,
financial management, corporate finance and corporate governance.
He is currently an executive director of Noble Century Investments
Holdings Limited, South East Group Limited, Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited and e-Kong Group Limited, and an independent non-
executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited, Jun Yang
Solar Power Investments Limited, Media Asia Group Holdings Limited,
New Times Energy Corporation Limited (redesignated from non-
executive director with effect from 18 May 2012) and U-RIGHT
International Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chan was an executive director
of Kong Sun Holdings Limited from February 2007 to November 2009
and from December 2011 to September 2013, and an independent
non-executive director of China Sandi Holdings Limited from
September 2009 to July 2014, all of which are listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Hung Hing Man, aged 44, joined the Board on 31 March
2009. He holds a masters degree in Business Administration
from the University of Western Sydney. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Hung is currently a proprietor of a
certified public accountants firm. He has over 17 years of working
experience in corporate finance, accounting, auditing and taxation
sectors. Mr. Hung was an independent non-executive director of
Eternity Investment Limited from May 2010 to November 2011,
and is currently an independent non-executive director of Madex
International (Holdings) Limited and China Information Technology
Development Limited, all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Hok Yuk, aged 49, is a Company Secretary of the Company.
Mr. Lau holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from
the University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom. He is a Fellow
Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst in the United States of America, an associate
member of the Taxation Institution of Hong Kong as well as a
Certified Tax Advisor. Mr. Lau has over 25 years of working experience
in the areas of financial control, corporate finance, business
development and administration, legal and compliance, procurement
and logistics, trading, investor relationship and human resources.

Ms. Shum Ching Yee Jennifer, aged 46, is a Deputy Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Ms. Shum holds a Bachelor degree in
Commerce (Accounting) from the University of Western Australia.
She is the member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the CPA Australia. Ms. Shum has over 10 years of
experiences in financial management.

Mr. Yam Yuk Tung, aged 43, is the operations manager of the
entertainment and gaming division of the Group and is responsible
for overseeing the operations aspects in the management of REX
Fortune. Mr. Yam graduated from University of Calgary, Canada in
Bachelor of Commerce. He has extensive experience in the cruise
industry including cruise ship management and vessel takeover project

planning.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Gu Zhong Xiang, aged 73, is the senior engineer of rare
resources division of the Group and is responsible for the sales and
development of rare earth products. He is a Professor-level Senior
Engineer. Mr. Gu graduated from Department of Modern Chemistry,
University of Science and Technology of China. He has over 42 years
of experience in natural resources industry and specialises in sales,
development and analysis for the rare earth products. He cooperated
with Bureau of Geology Survey on Non-ferrous Metal of Guangdong
Province (B A E®H E)/F) in the inspection ion-absorbed
rare earths resources in the South China. He has involved in the
foundation of several rare earth refinery and processing enterprises
in Shaanxi Province and Sichuan Province of China, including a
Japanese-funded enterprise. During this period, Mr. Gu engaged in
rare earth processing technology development and product analysis
testing. He is also a standing director of BXFEE# L& (Shaanxi
Province Rare Earth Society).

Mr. Li Ming Dong, aged 52, is the senior engineer of rare resources
division of the Group and is responsible for the planning and
coordinating the production of the rare earth refinery business in
Xichang. Mr. Li graduated from Department of Chemistry, Peking
University. He has over 25 years of experience in natural resources
industry and specialises in operation and planning for the rare earth

refinery.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital to
the Group’s success and to sustain development of the Group. We
commit ourselves to a high standard of corporate governance and
have devoted considerable efforts to identifying and formulating
corporate governance practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices to
meet the code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules, that are considered to be relevant to the
Group, and has complied with most of the Code Provisions for the
time being in force throughout the year under review save for certain
deviations from the Code Provisions, details of which will be explained
in the relevant paragraphs in this Report. The Company periodically
reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of business and affairs of the Group to the best interest
of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board currently comprises a total of seven Directors, with two
Executive Directors namely Mr. Wong King Shiu, Daniel and Mr. Lee
Kuang Yeu; two Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Ma Kwok Hung,
Warren and Mr. Chow Siu Ngor; and three Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen and Mr.
Hung Hing Man. A list containing the names of the Directors and their
roles and functions is published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 33 to
35. To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between
members of the Board.

Throughout the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules respectively relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise and the Independent Non-
executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.

Corporate Governance Report
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All Independent Non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company confirmed with all Independent Non-
executive Directors as to their independence with reference to the
factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the Group’s
overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business performance
of the Group, preparing and approving financial statements,
recommending the Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
considering and approving material contracts and transactions (in
particular those may involve conflict of interests) as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board also gives clear
directions as to the powers delegated to the management for the
day-to-day operation, management and administration functions of
the Group. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management and the
Board has the full support of them to discharge its responsibilities.

There were seven Board meetings and three general meetings held
for the year ended 31 March 2015. The following was an attendance
record of the Board meetings and general meetings during the year
under review:

EREBVFATESEMB LUBYNAEE AR
AE2REMRANEIBEAB2EAR BE2EET
FRTEEERRE 2B -

EZgAFAEBANTASEZERRER R KER
AEBEZEBRR BERMEMBRE RAEER
BIEFRUKEER ZBERUEAERANERS
(TERAEYEANaERE) REMERBER R
FH-BEFENMERRTEEENAEBATLEE.
EERTTHBEZE NG TEWES - EEEREZ
ERERARZA BARSEZGHE MEFTSR
EEEE2 N NEITHERBS-

HE-T-AF=A=T—AILFE ARTYEST
tREFRRAREREEAR LT AR EEFE
BT EFEERRBREAS ZHALS

Number of Number of
Board general
meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
HE BT HE BT
Name of Directors EEpgE ESEERAY BRERXERE
Executive Directors HiTEF
Wong King Shiu, Daniel =2k 717 3/3
Lee Kuang Yeu FEF
(appointed on 18 September 2014) (R=ZZF—mFENA+/FIEZ(E) 2/2 2/2
Non-executive Directors FEHITESEF
Ma Kwok Hung, Warren 5B 717 3/3
Chow Siu Ngor BNE 717 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Wong Hoi Kuen = 7/7 3/3
Chan Chi Yuen BRAEE 717 3/3
Hung Hing Man LEX 717 3/3
Note:  Mr. Lee Kuang Yeu was appointed as Executive Director on 18 Wit ZFEFRERZ-ZZ-—NEFALATN\BEZTARNTE

September 2014 and there was totally two Board meetings and two
general meetings held for the period from 18 September 2014 to 31

March 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and nature
of offices held in other public companies or organisation and other
significant commitments in a timely manner and will provide updates
to the Company on any subsequent changes.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the Group’s
management, giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position, recent developments and
prospects in sufficient detail to keep them abreast of the Group’s
affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out

in writing.

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities of
a Chairman and a Chief Executive are currently held by separate
individuals with written guidelines for the division of responsibilities
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties between
the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the
Group's business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of
a Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive if candidates with
suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified
within or outside the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, the
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are
subject to retirement by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting as specified in the Company’s bye-laws.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established relevant board committees to assist in
discharging its responsibilities.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012.
It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Hung Hing Man (as Chairman), Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen and
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen and one Executive Director namely Mr. Wong King
Shiu, Daniel.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship, appointment or re-appointment and succession
of Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Details of the duties and powers of the
Nomination Committee are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since August
2013 which set out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees board diversity is an essential element in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In reviewing
Board composition, the Nomination Committee will consider balance
of a number of factors, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on merit,
having due regard to the overall effective function of the Board as a

whole.
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There were two Nomination Committee meetings held for the year HE_T—hF=-A=1+T—"HILFE REXZEEZ

ended 31 March 2015. The following was an attendance record of BIIMAER - UTRRBBEFERNRITZIREEE
the Nomination Committee meetings held during the year under EERIHELE:

review:

Number of

meetings

attended/held

Nomination Committee Members REZEERE HE " BITEERK

Hung Hing Man (Chairman) B (FE) 2/2

Wong Hoi Kuen Exﬁ% 2/2

Chan Chi Yuen R &R 2/2

Wong King Shiu, Daniel =5k 2/2

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination
of Directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(if)

reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted

(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board,
by the Independent Non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence; and (iii) reviewing the board diversity policy of the
Company. Nomination procedures and the process and criteria will be
determined by the Nomination Committee should there be the need
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 July 2006.
It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (as Chairman), Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen and
Mr. Hung Hing Man and one Non-executive Director namely Mr. Chow
Siu Ngor.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the management’'s remuneration proposals, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy and structure
of the Company and remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management. Details of the duties and powers of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its written terms of reference which are

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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There was two Remuneration Committee meetings held for the year HE-_T-—hF=-A=1+—"HIFE FHEE=Z

ended 31 March 2015. The following was an attendance record of BIIMAEZ - UTRREBEFENRITZHFMES
the Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year under EgRIHELE:

review:

Number of

meetings

attended/held

Remuneration Committee Members FHMEEERE HE /" BITEERK

Chan Chi Yuen (Chairman) PREE (FE) 2/2

Wong Hoi Kuen =81 2/2

Hung Hing Man LEX 2/2

Chow Siu Ngor ;N E 2/2

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
of individual Executive Director and senior management, and make
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final authority
to approve the recommendations made by the Remuneration

Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included (i) assessing performance of Executive Director
and senior management and, where applicable, approving their
terms of services including the Directors’ fees and the emoluments
of Executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and determining on policy
and structure of the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
March 2015 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under review are
set out in note 10 to the financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:

TERERBRKEE (&)

BIBCETHZTAEEXEBISE SREEBAE
RBE T RAFZA=ZT - BLFEZEFSRF
R

Number of
employees
EE A"
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 T L5 1,000,000/ 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001% 75 £2,000,000/% 7T 1
5

Audit Committee EREEE
The Audit Committee was established on 26 March 1999. It currently ERZEBER—NAAFEZAZ-+ "B REH

consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Wong Hoi Kuen (as Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi Yuen and Mr. Hung Hing
Man and one Non-executive Director namely Mr. Chow Siu Ngor. The
committee members possess appropriate professional qualifications,
business or accounting and related financial management expertise
and experience to provide relevant advice and recommendations to
the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the financial reporting and internal control principles of
the Company, and assisting the Board to fulfill its responsibility over
the audit. Details of the duties and powers of the Audit Committee
are set out in its written terms of reference which are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties which include: (i) to develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any) applicable to the
Directors and employees; and (v) to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

SEBIUFATEREORAEL (XF) REELE
RIBEXEENR —EFFRTEEG PEREAK -
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There were three Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended HE-_T-—hF=-A=1+T—"HILFE EZZEEZ

31 March 2015, two of which were held with the external auditor. BTZREE EPM N EINEZ AR LR TN

The following was an attendance record of the Audit Committee TRREBEFENRTZCEZZETER 2R
meetings held during the year under review: B

Number of

meetings

attended/held

Audit Committee Members ERZEERE HE " BITEERK

Wong Hoi Kuen (Chairman) =G (EE) 3/3

Chan Chi Yuen R &R 3/3

Hung Hing Man LEX 3/3

Chow Siu Ngor ;N E 3/3

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The Audit
Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on their audit
strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal control of

the Group.

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results and the
unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the compliance
and internal audit reports and the compliance and corporate
governance issues of the Group; and (iii) discussing with external
auditor the audit planning work (including the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations) in respect of the audit of the
annual results of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor during the year under review.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s external auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), represents the provision of
audit fees for statutory audit and other non-statutory audit services
amounting to approximately HK$1,500,000 and HK$691,000
respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and
those for the auditor to the shareholders of the Company are set out
on pages 49 to 50.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To protect its assets and to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the
financial information that the Company employs in its business or
releases to the public, the Company conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls. The scope of these
reviews includes, among others, finance, operations, regulation

compliance and risk management.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has adopted the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS' CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her first appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

tTREREE (&)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

According to the records provided by the Directors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities during the
year under review. The individual training record of each Director for
the year ended 31 March 2015 is summarised below:

EERNBTREETAUZ TR EAGSR AT
FHEEERLEFEME R 2 E - AR
EREZESHRELANBLEBZER -

RREERECETAMARARE ZLE 28
FEREBEFENZ2EEE CFHE %%E’e/é@w%&
ECE-RAF=AC+-RUIEFEREEMERZE
allpz= il =3 g U

Directors’ duties and Business related/
responsibilities/Corporate Accounting/Financial/
Governance/Updates on Laws, Management or
Rules and Regulations other professional skills
ESCBEREE CEER/ ES1EVa-H Vet Ve
EB - AR R A& E R EERHEMEXR
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ In-house Reading seminars/
materials  conferences briefings materials  conferences
HEWTE/ HERE/
R DR L 70 26 5 3R B E MR L
Executive Directors HNiTEE
Wong King Shiu, Daniel 25K v/ v v v/ v
Lee Kuang Yeu FEF v/ v v v/ v
Non-executive Directors HHTEF
Ma Kwok Hung, Warren e v/ v v/ v/ v
Chow Siu Ngor BN E v/ v v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors B FE#77E E
Wong Hoi Kuen B v v v v/ v
Chan Chi Yuen REE v/ v v/ / v
Hung Hing Man FLEX / v v/ v/ v
DIRECTORS' LIABILITIES INSURANCE E?ZE&%%

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of
potential legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities of the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the CG
Code. Such directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed and renewed
annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, no claim has been made
against the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Lau Hok Yuk, who was
appointed by the Board on 28 May 2013.

During the year under review, Mr. Lau has undertaken sufficient hours
of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
Company’s bye-laws 58, the shareholder(s) of the Company holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company with the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to convene a special
general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed in writing with contact
details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2602, 26/F,,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general meeting
Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed
at general meetings. Proposals shall be directed in writing with
contact details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2602, 26/F,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director are
available on the website of the Company.

The Board may, in its sole discretion, consider if such proposals are
appropriate and shall be put forward to the Shareholders for approval
at the next general meeting to be convened by the Board.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company communicates with its shareholders and investors
through various channels including publication of interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars, press releases and other corporate
communications and publications available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The
Company encourages their participation through general meetings
where the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board,
and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.

To promote the communication between the Company and
its shareholders, the Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy which shall be reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.

An up-to-date consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association and Company's bye-laws is published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. There have been no changes
to such constitutional documents during the year under review.

48 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #li5R4442[% AR A 7

RERASREEZEZEFR
AAREBOBRRRLEBAEEEE KBEXE
BrREERREAS LR EZERBKER (R
EME /2 i ARSI R BB M) AfAEE
ERARAZEBWERR (M AF BB E ST
78255-2575% 15 M E5261£2602F ) - T A A
NEFE -

REATZBEEZEFAIRARAHIEFE-

EZQN2RREERAREEAREAE URES
REZFEAMZ TABRRAE L2 BRRHLE-
BERREBEARREERR

ARAAEBETBREAEEREBRELERBA  BEN
BXAEARBBREHTHRFERS A B
B HTRE R R E X R B A R T -

ARBZBRRAERHEZTGHEBRREKER 2H
G ARABHBBEEFHERRASEBE S - HRIRMA
EXEEENRRER URGLITEERERE-

AR DT ERR 2 BE AR R E S AT R R B
BE UEETHma  ABEREKYETABITE
B REAMBE -

ARAFABERRNERARAYZ&FEERAERN
ARAEBIAELEH REBEFEN ZFEE
ST A S AE ] 2B -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B Y & B RS

9/F., Tung Ning Building, 249-253 Des Voeux Road C, Hong Kong

(] ' '(( ™ TING HO KWAN & CHAN CPA LTD
L A\

TING HO KWAN & CHAN

TO THE MEMBERS OF REX GLOBAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS
LIMITED (FORMERLY CHINA GAMMA GROUP LIMITED)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REX Global
Entertainment Holdings Limited (formerly China Gamma Group
Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 51 to
159, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBERE (F)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015 and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shu Kin
Practising Certificate Number: P01297

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

AWK

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

2015 2014
—E-hfF —F-mE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M it FET FET
Revenue WA 7 80,564 41,018
Other income and gains (losses) Hmh WA R e (B 8) 7 18,052 1,078
98,616 42,096
Cost of sales $H & AR (9,198) (41,358)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE 31 (25,183) -
Administrative expenses THER (116,071) (25,201)
Loss from operations EiEBE (51,836) (24,463)
Finance costs & R AR 8 (15,317) (30,294)
Loss before taxation BB AT E 1B 9 (67,153) (54,757)
Taxation B 11 21 34
Loss for the year AEEBE (67,132) (54,723)
Loss attributable to: LT ATEEER:
Equity shareholders of RRAIRERRE
the Company (67,899) (51,471)
Non-controlling interests FE1E R e 2 767 (3,252)
(67,132) (54,723)
(Restated)
(=31)
Loss per share for loss ENEEERRELEBEZ
attributable to equity gFRER
shareholders of the Company 13
Basic and diluted EAR R #E (1.07) cents{l (1.08) centsfll

The notes on pages 58 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWRSE X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-lEF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
M it FET FET
Loss for the year EEERHE (67,132) (54,723)
Other comprehensive Hih2mH (ZH) KA
(expense) income:
Item that may be reclassified HEgngesmoHEBa cEE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on WMEGINM B AR IS RE
translation of financial EXZIERERE
statements of overseas
subsidiaries
- net movement in exchange —EBHEEFEE
reserve 12 (3,460) 10,482
— release of reserve upon — B A R AR B R
disposal of subsidiaries 12 (5,177) -
Other comprehensive (expense) ANEEEMPE (ZH) WA
income for the year (8,637) 10,482
Total comprehensive expense AEETEX HERE
for the year (75,769) (44,247)
Attributable to: LT AL
Equity shareholders of RQ A R IR R
the Company (75,454) (43,864)
Non-controlling interests 1A = (315) (377)
Total comprehensive expense AFEETEX HETE
for the year (75,769) (44,247)
The notes on pages 58 to 159 are an integral part of these 159B 2 MiFALEHRAMEHRERZ —

consolidated financial statements.

52 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #lE1R442 AR A R)

P
P
i
ul
[oe)
il
§H§



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEBMBERRR

At 31 March 2015 R=ZT—HF=A=+—H

2015 2014
ZE-AF —ET—MmF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB MREE 15 19,042 22,146
Land use rights 4 b i A 42 16 10,927 11,436
Goodwill HaE 17 23,592 23,592
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEESMmEE 18 9,300 -
62,861 57,174
Current Assets RENEE
Inventories FE 19 1,949 -
Trade and other receivables EKE S R EMIRIE 20 92,254 56,862
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFAEBERZEREE
through profit or loss 21 110,752 19,604
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFHIER 22 106,505 33,453
311,460 109,919
Assets classified as held for sale PEARELEEZEE 14 - 758,175
311,460 868,094
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JET B 5 & H #h BRIE 23 29,259 29,221
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 25 51,333 10,063
Convertible note Al AR R 26 - 101,272
Liabilities directly associated BAEARFIELHE 2
with the assets classified BEEERMEBCAE
as held for sale 14 - 513,292
Current taxation NI Y - 21
80,592 653,869
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

HEMBERRER (&)

At 31 March 2015 R=ZT—H&=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RfF —ET-mF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ig=3 FET FET
Non-current Liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to a JE < B B 2 B FE 4 AR IR SR RKIR
non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary 24 22,248 21,839
Bank and other borrowings HITREMEE 25 38,304 52,044
Deferred taxation RERIE 27 1,336 1,337
61,888 75,220
Net Assets EEFE 231,841 196,179
Equity s
Capital and reserves AAEIERBRREMN
attributable to the EXREE:
Company’s equity
shareholders:
Share capital N 28 73,917 42,987
Reserves f#H 153,122 (25,035)
227,039 17,952
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR e 7 4,802 178,227
Total Equity AR 231,841 196,179

ESTCORZZE—RAENATAAERBETESE
S1ZEEIS90B 2 B®ME YHUTATRRESS
are signed on its behalf by: B

The financial statements on pages 51 to 159 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2015 and

Wong King Shiu, Daniel Lee Kuang Yeu

Rk EETF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF EF

NESBEFI9A LT RUEHEAMBIRE L —

o

The notes on pages 58 to 159 are an integral part of these

RS

consolidated financial statements.

g
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 EHE-_T—RAF=A=+—HBILtFHE

i

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AREEERAEL
Share Capital ~ Convertible Share Non-
Share  premium  redemption note options  Exchange Special - Contributed ~ Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total interests Total

EXEE  TRREE
Ba  RfEER i ff BRERE EXGRE  BARE SRR  RiER 85 FEREE L
HKS000  HKSO00 XSO0 HKSUOO - HKSUOD - HKSO00  HKSUOO - HKSUOO  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD - HKSOO0
FET T FET FET FET FET FET FET FET T T FET

Balance at 1 April 2013 RZF-=ENA-Rz&H 37,987 692,636 13,878 18,352 4532 9215 78,176 684,966 (1,527,792) 11,950 178,604 190,554
Loss for the year FERER - - - - - - - - (B1471)  (51471) 325) (54723
Other comprehensive income: ERERA:
Exchange differences on translation of BESIHBRASBRE

finandial statements of EE7ERER

overseas subsidiaries - - - - - 7,607 - - - 7,607 2875 10,482
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2E (T RALE - - - - - 7,607 - - (51471) (43864 (7))
Issue of shares (Hote 28) BRI (W28 5,000 44,866 - - - - - - - 49,866 - 49,366
Total contributions and transactions BHREXRTRAAL

with owners of the Company 2548 5,000 44,866 - - - - - - - 49,866 - 49,866

Balance at 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014

42,987 737,502 13,878 18,352 4532 16,822 78176 684966 (1579,.263) 17,952 178,227 196,179

Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - - (67899 (67,8%) %7 (67,130
Other comprehensive expense: Ep2EL:
Exchange differences on translation of RERHBARTERE

financial statements of EE EREE

overseas subsidiaries - - - - - (2,378) - - - (2,378) (1,082) (3,460)
Release of exchange reserve upon HERBARRRRELRE

disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (5.177) - - - (5177) - (5177)
Total comprehensive expense 2ENLAE - - - - - (7,555) - - (67899)  (75454) (315)  (75,769)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Aote 37) HEMBAR (HH31) - - - - - - - - - - (B0 (173,110)
Total changes in ownership interests BEREREDEE - - - - - - - - - - (M0 (17310
Issue of shares ARG 1,645 24,972 - - - - - - - 26617 - 26617
Recognition of share option benefits BRATERDBRERN

at fair value - - - - 6,422 - - - - 6,422 - 6,422
Transfer to share premium on RTREREREARGAE

exercise of share options - 3401 - - (3,401) - - - - - - -
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - - (2.952) - - - 2,95 - - -
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERTARRRRERE

convertible note (Notes 26 and 26) (Hii26%28) 7297 116,05 - (1833 - - - - - 105,000 - 105000
Issue of shares by rights issue, net (Nore 28) W FREAIRG 38

(#i28) 21988 124514 - - - - - - - 146502 - 146502

Total contributions and transactions EARERDARFAL

with owners of the Company THBE 30,930 268,942 - (18,352) 69 - - - 2,952 284,541 (173,110) 11,431
Balance at 31 March 2015 RZE-REZA=1-RY

b33 73917 1,006,444 13,878 - 4,601 9,267 78,176 684,966 (1,644,210) 227,039 4,802 231,841

The notes on pages 58 to 159 are an integral part of these HNESBERISIA M AU FTHEEMBREZ —
consolidated financial statements. Eiba
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Conso|io|o’reo| Statement of Cash Flows

REBRERE X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-ZZT-—RAF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E—HF T — O F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES &S
Loss from operations BEEE (51,836) (24,463)
Adjustments for: KRFITE B
Interest income B YA 7 (18) (906)
Dividend income i S A 7 (3,155) (734)
Bad debt recovered B Y Bl £ iR 7 (4,412) -
Depreciation of property, M- BEMREETE
plant and equipment 9 4,519 5,216
Amortisation of land use rights o+ 3 50 PR A 6E 9 495 495
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEEZER
plant and equipment 9 - 50
Write-down of inventories WoRFEE 9 - 2,066
Impairment loss on assets DERFELECEEZREEE
classified as held for sale 9 22,613 -
Other receivables written off i b B U BR IR 9 10,945 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE \ 31 25,183 -
Net realised losses (gains) on BRAVEAABRZEMEEZ
financial assets at fair value BEEEEE (W) FE
through profit or loss 3,195 (3,172)
Net unrealised (gains) losses on BAVEABRGZEREEL
financial assets at fair value REH (W) BEFE
through profit or loss 7 (12,479) 4,072
Share-based payment LARR 19 A E B 2 A 5K 29 6,422 -
Exchange differences fEH =% (614) 6,872
Operating cash inflows EEESBPAIZRERS
(outflows) before movements RN (RE)
in working capital 858 (10,504)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  1#& (&) @4 (1,949) 3,765
Increase in trade and R E 5 I H h BRI 3 hn
other receivables (20,018) (14,197)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ERESREMEE CRd) /1N
other payables (20,438) 4,840
CASH USED IN OPERATION RETHFABRS (41,547) (16,096)
PRC tax paid BT ERIE - (98)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING K& EEHFABRESER
ACTIVITIES (41,547) (16,194)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Interest received 24T 8 7 18 906
Dividend received 2 4% B 7 3,155 734
Purchase of financial assets at fair BEEZAFEFABREZ
value through profit or loss PRMEE (345,178) (81,837)
Proceeds from disposal of HERAFESAEBRZ
financial assets at fair value CRMEEZBNRIE
through profit or loss 7 263,314 100,178
Payment for the purchase of BEWME BEREH AR
property, plant and equipment 15 (1,442) (51)
Payment for acquisition of WEAMHNESEE 2 TR
available-for-sale financial asset 18 (9,300) -
Proceeds from disposal of EEWE BERZEZ
property, plant and equipment Fﬁﬁmlﬁ - 19
Proceeds from disposal of HEMBARZHERIE
subsidiaries 37 57,364 -
NET CASH (USED IN) RETH (A EBRELFR
GENERATED FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (32,069) 19,949
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HERERER (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E-lEF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
ig=3 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Proceeds on exercise of IT{L B A4 2 PTG k1A
share options 26,617 -
Proceeds from shares issued under  RIEEEAR I 1T (D 2 FT1S5RIB
rights issue, net of issuing costs MR EITRA 146,502 -
Net proceeds on issue of BITREEBRZABRIETE
placing notes 9,500 18,457
Advance from a non-controlling PSR NGIE S {1
shareholder of a subsidiary 409 677
New bank and other borrowings FIgIRIT R EMEE
raised 60,050 -
Repayment of bank and BERITREMEE
other borrowings (93,890) (44,000)
Transaction cost on capitalisation HEhBEEERLZZIHAE
of other borrowings - (134)
Interest paid EATFE (2,603) (1,927)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEFBHRE (FR)RESFHE
(USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 146,585 (26,927)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRBESESHEBEE M
IN CASH AND CASH (D) 38
EQUIVALENTS 72,969 (23,172)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H¥zHRE&REELEHEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 33,526 56,638
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EX#g o€
RATE CHANGES 10 60
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H#zBEeRBESESHEEHR
AT END OF THE YEAR 22 106,505 33,526
The notes on pages 58 to 159 are an integral part of these BRESBEEISOBE M A EHGEEVBRKR L —
consolidated financial statements. b2l
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8

T W ok M RE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

58

GENERAL INFORMATION

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal place
of business of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the "Group”) is located at Suite 2602, 26/F., Sino Plaza, 255-
257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"), which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial assets which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group as
follows:
Amendments to Investment entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

Note 4 summarise the accounting policies of the Group. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period. Except
for as described below, the application of the above new or
revised HKFRS in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

60

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRS

are summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(0

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss. Consequential amendments were made to
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS
12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. These amendments do not have an impact on the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set-off” for offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. The amendments do
not have any material impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required
for an impaired asset or a cash-generating unit whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The amendments do not have any material impact
on the Group.

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #l&1R442 5 A 1R A &)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BBk M (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BHE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

The Amendments to HKAS 39 provide an exception to
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting in
situations where over-the-counter derivatives designated
in hedging relationships are directly or indirectly, novated
to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or
regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations. For
continuance of hedge accounting under this exception, all
of the following criteria must be meet: (i) the novations
must arise as a consequence of laws or regulations, or
the introduction of laws or regulations; (ii) the parties to
the hedging instrument agree that one or more clearing
counterparties replace their original counterparty to
become the new counterparty to each of the parties; and
(iii) the novations do not result in changes to the terms
of the original derivative other than changes directly
attributable to the change in counterparty to achieve
clearing. The amendments do not have any material impact
on the Group.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21, Levies

The Interpretation clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment,
as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The
interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued
progressively only if the activity that triggers payment
occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the
relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies
that no liability should be recognised before the specified
minimum threshold is reached. The interpretation does not
have any material impact on the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of

the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into

operation during the financial year, as a result, there are changes

to presentation and disclosures of certain information in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB ERME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

62

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 3.
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2015

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2015 and which have not been early adopted

in these financial statements.

BE-ES—HAF=A=+—BLEECHEH
BREKR 2B FEARREBZTRESFE

BHELSUEREMERR BEEMAE
CEMBETET MEARRE EREEZZ
—AF=ZA=+—BLEFEHNRER BX KR
BRUSHEHRR AR -

Effective for annual

periods beginning

on or after

RUATEHRZ#E

HrzFEHBEN

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee Benefits &E @& £ 8|5 199 285 [1E 818 F 1 July 2014

— Defined Benefit Plans: Employee —EFEEAEE ' B R —ET-WELA—H

Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs, ERMBRELEN BT T —FFE 1 July 2014

Annual improvements to ZE-—FRBCEBMEHREER —T-mFELA—H
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle F 1 B |

Amendments to HKFRSs, ERMBRELENZER T ——FE 1 July 2014

Annual improvements to CE—FRE BBV BEREER —FT-NE+LA—H

HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs,
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41,
Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest
in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011),
Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011), Sales or Contribution
of Assets between An Investor and Its
Associate or Joint Venture
HKFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is yet to assess the full impact of these amendments
and new standards on its consolidated financial statements.

F [ DU |
EAEVBRERNZET T ——F=
“E-NERBzBEEVHRELR
FEHGE]
FREAENF IR RER G ER
FISW| IR [BRBARILZHER
BiHTR]
EREHENE IR REEGER
FAVRZERT [BE - AELEYD]
ERMBMELERNFE R Z BT B
BEEGRmzZEEHE]

EREFERNFE2IR (=T ——F )2
CERE- AR E PR 3

EATBRELEAF 105 REF LS TE]
F8F (=T ——F) 2&87]
[ EEREBEN T RAELEMZ
EELESRFEAL
EAVBREERNFI45 [EEELTEE

ERVBRELENE ISR [ TEREHOWA

ERMBRELENFSR 2B TA]

BwikzczmzE-

1 January 2016
—ZT-A%—A—H

1 January 2016
—E—RE—A—H

1 January 2016
—ZT-A%—A—H
1 January 2016
—E-RF—-A—H

1 January 2016
—E-RF-A—H

1 January 2016
—E-RF—-A—H

1 January 2016
e
1 January 2017

—ET—+tF¥—-HA—H
1 January 2018
—T—\F—A—H

REEBRFEZFET RAEANHEGAY
A MRS ERBED

However, all of these new developments are not expected to SHERAMBBRRENERTE -
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BBk M (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BHE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

IR REMR
FIRAZEEGERNER T

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB ERME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with Notes 4(n) or 4(o) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 4(h))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 4(k)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivables.

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #lZ1R442 5 A 1R A7)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(c) Business combinations and goodwill

(1)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment” at the acquisition date; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0

(d)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
(2) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 4(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of the purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of profit or loss on
disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses. Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. Technical know-how for
separation of rare resources concentrates is amortised from
the date it is available for use and its estimated useful life
is 10 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of
any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

4. FESTHBREBE(B)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-ZZT-—RAF=A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEETEHEME(E)
(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (e) ME - BERRE(H)

68

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value, if
any, on a straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

WE -BERRERB ZTEDRAER
EFE VAT (4 5T AT {2 P 4R 5 9 38 L A AR
HiE (mE)E:

Leasehold buildings 20 years HERF 205
Leasehold land and buildings 30 years HELHRET 304
Leasehold improvements 2 years HEMEEE 24
Plant and machinery 3 - 20 years R 5 et 28 3E204F
Motor vehicles 4 - 8 years B 4ZE8F
Furniture and fixtures 3 - 10 years BMREEE 32104

Construction in progress represents buildings, structures,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction or installation and is stated at cost less any

ERETIRDEAZRERP 2T Z&E
W) PR Rt Es A B HoAth B E B E - AR AR
R ER RFDREB B M THE -

accumulated impairment losses, and is not depreciated. FRABIEEGE - R ROAF 2 EERA - A
Cost comprises direct costs of construction, installation and MREZENELHEBEEBEAESZER
testing as well as capitalised borrowing costs on related fbEEXRR -ERTEN T LA MHER
borrowed funds during the period of construction or BENOHEME BERREZ2HER
installation. Construction in progress is reclassified to the RS E W% -

appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or

investment properties when completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment W BRERZEBEESDBIBETRZ

have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of the asset,
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included
in profit or loss in the period the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(9)

Land use rights

Land use rights are lump sum upfront payments to acquire
long-term interest in lessee-occupied properties. Land use
rights relating to buildings of the Group are stated at cost
and are amortised over the period of the lease on the
straight-line basis to profit or loss.

Leases

(i) Operating lease (both as the lessee or the lessor)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Where the Group is the
lessee, payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to profit or
loss in a straight line basis over the lease period.

(ii)  Finance lease (as the lessee)

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially
obtained all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in current and non-current obligation under
a finance lease. The interest element of the finance
cost is recognised in profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The investment properties acquired
under finance leases are carried at their fair value,
while the property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the useful lives of the assets or the lease terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB ERME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Financial assets

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date when the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in profit or loss. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired, such as a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in
an equity investment below its costs. Financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are further categorised into the
following classifications for the measurement after initial

recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss included in current assets and are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Gain
or loss on the fair value changes of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit

or loss.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. They arise when the
Group provides money, goods or services directly to
a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.
They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period which are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “Trade and other receivables” and “Cash
and cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #lZ1R442 5 A 1R A7)

4.

TR BEME ()

(h)

TREE

MAEEAZBEXRLESREE AIE
FRENHESRHEEFTNIZSHER -
PREYFRATEFABRGZZSHEER
B RATFEMNRSRAHER - B RFE
ARG ZEREENIRAFEER
RHMAMNRBESHE - R EEREHK
AEEFERRAEATHERATER
BERSCHEEANRE IRk AKE
NFERERRATREEREKRAE -

Bnr

A BENRRARZESEREEN

S ERMEENNTHRBERE-FHDER
TR AR £ -

(i)

(ii)

BAFPEGTABBEZLHBEE

FIFEREFREDEARDERER
TRATEFAEGZEMEE I
BAFERGEMBEMRRRINE- &
SERREMFEEIRAE BRITAET AT
DERFEEE - BAFEFAERR
ZERMEENATEHEDZREBERNES
BER -

B RERKE

R R AR IR R0 FF 0B B T 5 R
B A 4 B E 3 7] 4 E 5RE 2 JE 0T
STEASHMEE HRERBERME
ERBERAAR EAEEEER
BBAREFE EVHIBRBAEER
BEERWIRE  AIELE SR RERR
B EFAGFARDEEN L
BEIHAAMEHREF12EAZ
BE ZEREGHIEERDEE -
FEEERREURREEGAMH
MARANZ TEREE SR EAMRE]
kiRekReEHEB] -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BB Em kM (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESHHBEME (E)
(continued)
(h) Financial assets (continued) (hy €®MEE (&)

(i) THHELHMEE

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments other than those held for trading and
held to maturity are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are stated in the statement
of financial position at fair value, which is their
transaction price including attributable transaction
costs. Gain or loss on fair value changes of available-
for-sale financial assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Where the
available-for-sale financial assets are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired
(see Note 2(k)), the cumulative loss is recognised
from equity to profit or loss even though the financial
assets have not been derecognised.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, are measured at
cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value of an instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price, unless it is estimated
by using a valuation technique when part of the
consideration given or received is for something other
than the investment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(M)

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
After initial recognition, the fair value of an
investment quoted in an active market is based
on the current bid price and, for investments not
quoted in an active market, the Group establishes
the fair value of such investment by using a valuation
technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm'’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable
willing parties, if available, by reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flows analysis and option
pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

G

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost less
any allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts,
except for the following receivables:

- interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at
cost less any allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts; and

- short term receivables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at their original invoiced amount less
any allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables
Investment in equity securities and other current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBEHE (H)
(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BERE(E)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) REFFREREME KRB E
and other receivables (continued) (%)

MEEFLBRERFE B @EEE
AT B (B IS #R 30 2 DA T 75 URERR

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

74

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBEHE (H)
(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BERE(E)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) REFFREREME KRB E
and other receivables (continued) (%)
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If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows: (continued)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt securities are reversed if the increase
in fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses are written off against

the corresponding investments directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to

identify indications that the following assets may

be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an

impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

pre-paid interests in land use rights classified as
being held under an operating lease;

intangible assets;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
flows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating units (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see Notes 4(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill and intangible asset carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity security increases in
the remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company's
equity share capital (Treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes,) is deducted from equity attributable
to the Company’s equity shareholders until the shares are
cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in
equity attributable to the Company’s equity shareholders.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities (if any)
measured in accordance with Note 4(s)(i), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost except
for the following payables:

- short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are

measured at their original invoiced amount; and

- interest free loans from related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

80

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

Bank and other borrowings

Bank and other borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Bank and other borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Convertible notes
Convertible notes which contain an equity component are
accounted for as follows:

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

An initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs
that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(a)

Convertible notes (continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible note reserve until either the
note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible note reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the convertible note
reserve is released directly to accumulated losses.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(9) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme and state-
managed retirement benefits scheme are charged as
expenses as they fall due.

Share-based payments

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of the
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve. For share options that are vested at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(r)  Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’'s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZEZZT—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note (iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with note (iii)
below. Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note (iii) below.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZEZZ—

4.

86

AFE=ZA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue excludes value added and
business taxes, and is after deduction of trade discounts, if
any.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and the costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Cruise ship leasing and management fee income
- Cruise ship leasing income is recognised on an
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
the leasing agreement.

- Cruise ship management fee income is
recognised when the management service is
rendered.

(ii) Revenue from the sale of passenger tickets is
recognised when the tickets are issued.

(iiij) Revenues from onboard services and other
related services, including food and beverage and
entertainment are recognised when the services are
provided.

(iv) Revenue arising from rare resources is recognised
when the Group has transferred to the customer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Revenue arising from gamma ray irradiation services
is recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

When the renovation services are provided and the
outcome of the renovation project can be estimated
reliably, renovation service income is recognised on
the percentage of completion method measured by
reference to the value of work carried out during
the year. When the outcome of a renovation project
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the project costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable.

Sales of building materials are recognised when they
are delivered and title has passed.

(viii) Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

is recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognised to restate to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established prior to the end of the reporting
period.

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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RAFE=ZA=+—-HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(u) Foreign currencies translation

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HK
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from foreign currency borrowings used
to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the fair value reserve.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

Foreign currencies translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies (continued)

(b) income statement for each financial statements
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the year-end closing rate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.

4. =
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(u) SEERE (E)

(v)
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) R
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ZEBEERFARSENIBRER
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m °©
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B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZEZZ—

4.

90

(continued)
(w) Related parties

(a)

AFE=ZA=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A person or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction. When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the above criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZEZZT—

AFE=ZA=+—-HLFE

4. FEETBEHE(H)

(x)

(y)
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8

HwmRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

4.

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups,
are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to
this measurement policy so far as the financial statements
of the Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties.
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere
in Note 4.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #l&1R442 5 A 1R A &)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(M

(i)

(iii)

Allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of impairment
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact carrying value
of receivables and allowances for impairment losses in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimation of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 4(k).
generating units have been determined based on value

The recoverable amounts of cash-

in use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Notes 14 and 17).

Amortisation and impairment of intangible asset
Intangible asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its estimated useful lives in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 4(d). The determination of the useful
lives involves management’s estimation. The Group re-
assesses the useful life of the intangible asset and, if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such a
difference may impact the amount of amortisation charged
to consolidated income statement during the year and the
estimate will be changed in the future period.

The Group tests whether intangible asset which has finite
useful live has suffered any impairment whenever there
is any indication that the asset may have been impaired.
The recoverable amount of the intangible asset has been
determined based on the higher of its (i) value in use,
which have been estimated using discounted cash flow
method, and (ii) fair value less costs of disposal. Testing
for impairment requires significant subjective judgements
by management. Any changes in the estimates used
could have a material impact on the calculation of the
recoverable amount and result in an impairment charge.

5. BegcrhEt kAR (B)

(M

(i)

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

5.

94

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(iv) Income taxes
Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax losses of
approximately HK$245,029,000 (2014: HK$256,908,000)
was not recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
expenses in the year in which such determination is made.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purpose, the Group has four (2014: three)
principal lines of businesses namely (1) entertainment and
gaming business; (2) property business (including property
development, trading of building materials and provision of
renovation services); (3) gamma ray irradiation services; and
(4) resources business which, together with other operation —
securities trading and investment are the basis on which the
Group reports its primary segment information.

REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. IWER(E)
Segment results, assets and liabilities DEEE EEREE
An analysis of the Group's revenue, contribution to operating REBOHEAD 2 AREEWA  KEEEER
results and segment assets and liabilities by business segments is SHMEERBEINOAT
presented as follows:
2015 —E-RF
Other
operation -
Entertainment Gamma ray securities
and gaming Property irradiation Resources  trading and
business business services business investment  Unallocated Total
Hip -
RER &5 & BEEH
BYER LEE RERE ERER RiE FAE @
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FEz FEz FEz FEz FEz FET Tz
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FalER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 H2-Z-1F
ZREt-HLEEE
REVENUE KA 74,696 26 5,842 - - - 80,564
Segment results AREE 16,598 (1,920) (2,565) (52,014) 12,423 - (27,478)
Unallocated corporate expenses AABAABX (24,358)
Loss from operations EEFR (51,836)
Finance costs BERK (15,317)
Loss before taxation BHRABR (67,153)
Taxation Ha 2
Loss before non-controlling interests NRFERERAER (67,132)
Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4Ff 9 5




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) PTHEB - BERAEB(E)
2015 (continued) —E-RFE(H)
Other
operation -
Entertainment Gamma ray securities
and gaming Property irradiation Resources trading and
business business services business investment  Unallocated Total
Hit g%
RER BT RHEE
BRER WEER AR BRER k& FARE @it
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GREBMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION RZB-1F
AT 31 MARCH 2015 ZB=t+-R
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PHEE 56,490 2,803 55,781 - 111,859 - 226,933
Unallocated corporate assets AIBLAEE 147,388
Consolidated total assets RABEMR 374,321
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment liabilities AHEE 3,523 21,975 10,362 150 51,885 - 87,895
Unallocated corporate liabilities FABARER 54,585
Consolidated total liabilities GARREEE 142,480
OTHER INFORMATION EtEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BEZ-%-31F
31 MARCH 2015 SA=t-BLEE
Capital additions #g 1,416 26 - - - - 1,442
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 130 118 4,661 - - 105 5,014
Net unrealised gains on financial assets BRATEHABRZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZRERBFETFE - - - - 12,479 - 12,479
Impairment loss on assets classified PERBFLEZEERZ
as held for sale AEEE - - - 22,613 - - 22,613
Other receivables written off MELMERRE - - - 3,769 - 7,176 10,945
Bad debt recovered EHERE - - - - - 4,412 4,412
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B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. oWBER (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) PEWER EERAE(E)
2014 —T e
Other
operation -
Entertainment Gamma ray securities
and gaming Property irradiation Resources  trading and
business business services business investment  Unallocated Total
b %H%-
RER ke EHEE
BYEH NEEH Rar iR EREH kBE RAR &t

HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKS00 - HKSO00  HK$000
AT TET AT TET TET AT TET

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT Falm%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014 Hz-T-mF
ZRZT-HIEFE

REVENUE WA - 1,011 5,906 34,101 - - 41,018
Segment results GEE S - (694) (2,565) (3,559) (176) - (6,994)
Unallocated corporate expenses AARATFX (17,469)
Loss from operations 2EER (24,463)
Finance costs BERKA (30,294)
Loss before taxation BREAER (54,757)
Taxation B 34
Loss before non-controlling interests MRFRRERANER (54,723)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

6.

98

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) oBER (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) PTHEB - BERAEB(E)
2014 (continued) —E—F (&)
Other
operation -
Entertainment Gamma ray securities
and gaming Property irradiation Resources  trading and
business business services business investment  Unallocated Total
E¥B-
RER 55 & EHBE
BYER NEEH R 5T RS AREH k& KA @it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FERBRAE
FINANCIAL POSITION WZZE-RF
AT 31 MARCH 2014 =A=1+-H
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NHEE - 9,765 59,179 - 19,605 - 88,549
Assets classified as held for sale PERRELECEE
(Note 14) (Hiti4) - - - 758,175 - - 758,175
Unallocated corporate assets FPRAAEE 78,544
Consolidated total assets GAREELRA 925,268
LIABILITIES R
Segment liabilities PHEE - 25,184 10,335 134,929 1,269 - 171,717
Liabilities classified as held for sale PEERELECAR
(Note 14) (fizt14) - - - 513,292 - - 513,092
Unallocated corporate liabilities AARAAERE 44,080
Consolidated total liabilities RAEEES 729,089
OTHER INFORMATION EHER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED Hz-Z3-mF
31 MARCH 2014 ZA=t-HIEEE
Capital additions BE - - 51 - - - 51
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH - 758 4,838 - - 115 5,711
Net unrealised losses on BRTEHABEL
financial assets at SHEEL
fair value through REBEEIE
profit or loss - - - - 4072 - 4,072
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B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BEZEZT-RAF=A=+—HIFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
the year (2014: HK$Nil).

Segment results represents the profit (loss) earned or incurred
by each segment without allocation of central administration
costs including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs, and income tax expense. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
current and deferred tax assets. Goodwill is allocated
to reportable segments as described in Note 17. Assets
used jointly by segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than certain borrowings and current and deferred tax
liabilities. Liabilities for which segments are jointly liable
are allocated in proportion to segment assets.

Geographical segments

All of the Group’s operations are principally located in Hong
Kong and the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
Group's administration is carried out in Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical market,
irrespective of the origin of the goods and services, is presented

DERER (4F)

DEHEE - BEERAE(H)
EXFEHRZBAERBINBES Z WA - RA
FREITESBEHE (ZF—MF T °

DEEERERDETRITRER (BEEEH
REREMBA BE KA RSB X)
CHENSMAARBSEE G F (EIE) < A
I’lﬂi%”“%é&ﬁ%%i&%f’ﬁﬁﬁ SN )
BRBEZ A

a”#I-I+>tl»

RERHBREREDBEH RN S

- FEBEHUSEZHERHH (EANPRE
LWE%F&?%) o QNPT REV 7 AT - PHETY
AEEERRIBL - HﬁﬁﬁZﬁF
To AR R AE B 5 56 AT B EL 2 IR A F A
&

- FMEEREBEASEEZRHmsM(EETEE
RABRREGIEG BRI - XD BLR
EEZABMREBEDHEEZ LG T A
fic e

s & 2 &P
AEERBEBIZURBERPEARLMN
B (B AREBEZTRTEREEET-

AEBEZBRTIGZE D ZHA (FwE MK IRTE
HORH) DT

below:
2015 2014
—E—EHF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BAE 74,722 1,011
The PRC A 5,842 40,007
80,564 41,018
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Geographical segments (continued)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-

DEER (E)
HEDE (F)

REEMAME D ZFRBEERHEN TN

current assets analysed by the geographical area in which the i
assets are located:
2015 2014
—E-EF —ZE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Hong Kong BAE 10,607 59
The PRC A E 52,254 57,115
62,861 57,174
Information about major customers FRXEEFZEHN

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

KERNBEFERERABIONZES ZHA

over 10% of the total revenue are as follows: N

2015 2014
—E-hfF —F—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A’ BE R 66,166 -
Customer B? BFEZ? - 13,976
Customer C? ®PRA? - 19,083

1 Revenue from entertainment and gaming business ! K EIREER B R E 2 WA

2 Revenue from resources business

1 OO REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)

2 KEBFFERBZHMA



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (LOSSES) 7. WA-EHttARKE (BE)

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net amounts received WAEEFRNBE=TERRERFIBFE L
and receivable from third parties during the year. An analysis o AREE ZFRPA - EMRA R (BE)
of the Group's revenue, other income and gains (losses) for the AT

year is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ET-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue KA
Resources business BRER - 34,101
Gamma ray irradiation services income 10035 57 43 58 57 AR 75 U A 5,842 5,906
Property business LIEE S0 26 1,011
Cruise ship leasing and management HHEEREEE WA
fee income 66,166 -
Passenger tickets revenue FEMERA 3,829 -
Onboard and other revenues M £ R E A A 4,701 -
80,564 41,018
Other income and gains (losses) Htt g AR Uz (B5E)
Interest income on financial assets not WIHEATFEFARRZERMEE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 FE WA 18 906
Dividend income from listed investments WA ZREBA 3,155 734
Net realised (losses) gains on financial assets A FEFABHZZERMEE
at fair value through profit or loss BEEIR (EE) K F5E (3,195) 3,172
Net unrealised gains (losses) on financial ERAFEGFABRZENEEZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss RERWE (BE) F5E 12,479 (4,072)
Government grants (Note) AT BY (B at) 522 -
Exchange gain P 5 U 2 661 -
Bad debt recovered 2 U B3 iR 4,412 -
Sundry income FETEU A - 338
18,052 1,078
98,616 42,096
Gross proceeds from securities trading BHEEZMSRIEHLTE 263,314 100,178
Note: The government grants represented the amounts received from the Mit: BNMBEREENBRARREIFTRIERE
local government by a subsidiary of the Group for rare resources BOR B AM  YCER 3 5 B 2 FRIE © BT REE IR 1
technology innovation and improvement. All specific conditions HEEK (FE) -

have been fulfilled (if any).

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4Ff 1 O 1




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HE-ZZT—RF=A=+—HIEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMXK
2015 2014
—E-IF —E-lE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on: ME:

Bank borrowing RITEE 736 753
Margin account payable FERTFF R AR P 3E 1,333 -
Other borrowings HitEE 8,971 22,042
Convertible note (Note 26) AR RE (K i26) 4,277 7,499

Total interest expense on financial liabilities WIER A FEFABZHE 2
not at fair value through profit or loss eHEBECANIZH 15,317 30,294

1 02 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

BR L AT &5 1R
BRATEERINBRTIEA RS

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9.
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

2015 2014
—E-4fF —E-lEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Staff costs BIXA
— directors’ remuneration (Note 10) —BE=ME (HiE10) 1,678 1,155
— basic salaries and other benefits —HEAFHEREMEFR 20,865 5,630
- retirement benefits scheme contributions — — iR K& 5+ 8] 4 3¢ 550 419
— share-based payments (Note 29) — AR B EME 2 R (M 5229) 6,422 -
29,515 7,204
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B AT B &
— Audit services —EEZR% 1,513 1,356
- Non-audit services —FEZRE 691 -
Depreciation and amortisation of W BB REETE
property, plant and equipment 4,519 5,216
Amortisation of land use rights T AR 495 495
Impairment loss on assets classified DERFEEECZEEZ
as held for sale (Note 14) WEEE (Mit14) 22,613 -
Exchange loss M 5 &8 - 7,503
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BELEEZERE
plant and equipment - 50
Operating lease payments (Note 34) KETBEN R (M 234) 4,125 3,075
Cost of inventories sold BEERFEKRAR 3,819 34,930
Cost of fuel oil consumed [RRIE =Y PPN 14,343 -
Write-down of inventories MR FE - 2,066
Other receivables written off it 85 H Ath JiE U5 BR 18 10,945 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 10. EEMLERAEEESTFMAL
PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME

BFEFZHSHIOT

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

1 04 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)

For the year ended 31 March 2015:

BE-Z-HAF=ZA=+—-HLEE:

Employer’s
contribution

Share-  to retirement
based benefit 2015
Fees Salary payments scheme Total
URGREHR BRAFERE —E-1%
Name of directors EIfE ok e PATES EEHX @it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FET
Executive directors YiTES
Mr. Wong King Shiu, Daniel BERALSE - 540 83 18 641
Mr. Lee Kuang Yeu (Note (a)) TEFRE (i) - 214 83 - 297
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren SEELE 120 - 28 - 148
Mr. Chow Siu Ngor BNEEE 120 - 28 - 148
Independent non-executive BUKHITES
directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen EEELE 120 - 28 - 148
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BRERLE 120 - 28 - 148
Mr. Hung Hing Man LEXEE 120 - 28 - 148
Total 2015 T -AFHE 600 754 306 18 1,678



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 10. EEMEREERSTFMAL (B)
PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEBM< (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2014: HE-_Z-—-NF=ZA=+—HILEFE:
Employer's
contribution
Share- to retirement
based benefit 2014
Fees Salary payments scheme Total
MR AER  RIKEFEE —T-mF
Name of directors EZfg e e PARE S EEHT wat
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
Executive director YTES
Mr. Wong King Shiu, Daniel BERAEE - 540 - 15 555
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren SEHELE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Chow Siu Ngor BIEEE 120 - - - 120
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen HERELE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BRERLE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Hung Hing Man HESEE 120 - - - 120
Total 2014 T -MmEREH 600 540 - 15 1,155
Notes: it
(@) Appointed on 18 September 2014. (@ RZZE—MFENATNBEZE-
(b)  None of the directors has waived any emoluments during the (b) FRWMERNEETAME -
year.
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts NG 2 A5 RS S MR {AT B ) BT AR A
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company BEAARRAIRINAWEARNEBERS
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a AMARRESHPERIBERFTEKR
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at BRI EARG BHEREH -

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(b) Highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2014: one) was director of the Company

(b) BEHMAL

10. EEMERAEREHFMAL (B)

AEBLERRFMALRE R (ZF
—WE—Z)ARAERE EWMEHR L

whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of NoH#BALTZHMESMT
the remaining individuals were as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HfF —E—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e & H M1z A 3,478 2,898
Retirement benefits scheme RIKEFF B R
contributions 60 57
Share-based payments LARR 19 /2 288 2 AT 5% 83 -
3,621 2,955

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals
were within the following bands:

HApGRRFMALTHMEN FATHE:

2015 2014

—B-THE —E—mF

Number of Number of

employees employees

ESAZ 1ES A

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T LA A 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001% 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals, including directors and
employees, as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

1 06 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)
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11.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 1. HRERBERAZHIE
STATEMENT
2015 2014
—ZE—-EF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Taxation calculated in the consolidated SGEWMERANFE 2BIER:

income statement represents:

Current tax: NERRIA
PRC corporate income tax RS _ 119
Over-provision in respect of BAEFEBERE
previous years (21) -
21) 119
Deferred tax (Note 27): RIERIE (Mit27) -
Origination and reversal of EWNERZEEREE
temporary differences - 487
Over-provision in respect of BT FEBERE
previous years - (640)
- (153)
Taxation credit HIEE R (21) (34)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in HRARAIREBTEWNBRARRMEFESE
the consolidated financial statements as the Company and JERT & A MO BN AR S IS MR IER B AT
its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have no assessable profits for SR E PR B A RRIE IR EER A
both years. Taxation for the PRC subsidiaries is charged at the TR

appropriate current rate of taxation ruling in the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-ZZT-—AF=A=+—HIFE

11.

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT (continued)

11.

The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic taxation

rates applicable to losses of the consolidated companies as

follows:

REWERAZBE(E)

AEBEBRBRABREZREALEEREARES

/

AEBRZAMMERELEZ 2R HEE A TR

ERT

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-lE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation & 5 A e 18 (67,153) (54,757)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of RAMFERBE16.5%
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—HEF 1 16.5%)
FTEZBIE (11,080) (9,034)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ey 52 18,994 10,466
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEARMBA TG E (6,578) (394)
Tax effect of temporary differences not REEARERZERERY
recognised for the year Biwe 5 6
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERERZWBEREZ
for the year M2 1,616 241
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  fEEfbAAERE 2% 2B QA
operating in other jurisdictions TRAKEzZZ (2,957) (679)
Over-provision of current tax BEFERBTEBERE
in previous years (21) -
Over-provision of deferred tax BT R TH RR R AR
in previous years - (640)
Taxation credit RIEE R (21) (34)

1 08 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)




12.

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) INCOME 12. Hft 2@ (ZH) KA
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-lEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Exchange reserve: ME 71
Exchange differences on translation BREBIINNBARTEREREE Y
of financial statements of overseas ME W Z 5
subsidiaries (3,460) 10,482
Reclassification adjustments: ENOEAE:
— Realisation of exchange reserve on — HE B A AR IR IE KR
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 31) (Bat31) (5,177) -
Net movement in the exchange reserve REME2E (ZEH) KAER
during the year recognised in other FANERFEETE
comprehensive (expense) income (8,637) 10,482
LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of approximately HK$67,899,000 (2014: approximately
HK$51,471,000) and the weighted average number of
6,333,903,765 (2014: 4,755,039,479 (restated)) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 March 2014 for the purpose of basic loss per share
has been adjusted and restated to reflect the effects of the
rights issue completed on 11 September 2014.

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 has not included the potential
effect of share options outstanding and the deemed conversion
of the convertible note into ordinary shares as they have an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the year.

BEREABEDIRERAAAESBR T ES K
FEEIENG67,899,0008 0 (T —WF:
#951,471,0008 L) R FRNBETERR 2
h0#E 5 £16,333,903,7658% (= Z — P04 :
4,755,039,4790% (&%) )at & -

REREABAEMS BEZE_F-—NFE=7
ST -RLEFEZEBENEFHHE THE
LB ARBR-_ZE—NFNAA+—RAEXZ
HhzEdE-

AEEREE T -AF=A=t+—HAKZZT—M@
FZA=ZT-RALEFEZERESERY I8
AARARTEBERERTREZRRREERS
TR EERE RARHEYFESRELRE
BARBEZE -

=
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 14. PEARBEHEZEE &f&

Before 31 March 2013, the Group started to rationalise
the resources business by considering the possibilities of
restructuring the rare earth refinery and processing business.
The Group made a plan to sell a group of subsidiaries that
engaged in the rare earth refinery and processing business if the
assets value would be better reflected by such a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. The rare earth refinery and
processing business was mainly conducted through &% &% JR
s L RHZ B R A A (Mianning Mao Yuan Rare Earth Technology
Company Limited) (“Mianning Mao Yuan”), a 54% owned
subsidiary of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2014,
the Group was actively seeking buyers for the rare earth refinery
and processing business and expected to complete the sale
within one year subject to commercial circumstances. Preliminary
discussions with potential buyers were on going and as at 31
March 2014, negotiations for the sale were still in progress and
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries were still classified as
non-current assets and liabilities held for sale.

On 19 November 2014, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of a group of subsidiaries, including Mianning Mao Yuan. The
disposal was completed on 3 February 2015. For details of the
disposal, please refer to Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

1 1 O REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)

N-F-—Z=ZF=ZA=+—R ~AEEFRKZE
EABLARMIEBZ AN  UHBHERE
B AREEFIHELER IR EEAEE Eit
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EBZHBAR -BEANIEBIEERRE
BERBIREERAR ([E2EXR]) (K%
BERSA% R 2 MBRAR)ET-RBE_T
“OE=ZA=t-RALFE AKEREHERHL
RMTEBSLER BFHERR BHR—
FARKRHE AREFEREEERETVS
M MR -ZE-—NF=A=+—H FHLE
ZEBINEET ZENBLARCEERAEDN
ROBRFIELREZHERBDEEREE-
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ZHREK-AHHEERZFE F2HEAY
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ®mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BHE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(continued)

The results of the assets/liabilities classified as held for sale (i.e.
rare earth refinery and processing business) that are included
in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of cash flows are shown as below.

14.

PERBEHEZEE B8E (H)

HAGARNERGARERERZHEAR
ez EE /Bl (BIHLRMT ) 260
e

2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-lEFE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Loss for the year from rare earth refinery MmETAMIEBAFERRE:
and processing business:
Revenue WA - 34,101
Other income H A Y A 522 250
Cost of sales 55 AR - (34,930)
Impairment loss on assets classified PERBEHECZEEZ
as held for sale (Note 9) BAEEE (Hi7F9) (22,613) -
Administrative expenses T E A (391) (2,980)
Loss before taxation KRB A E 1B (22,482) (3,559)
Taxation Fi1E - 153
Loss for the year REFEEBIE (22,482) (3,406)

A business valuation of Mianning Mao Yuan as at 30 September
2014 and 31 March 2014 had been performed based on
value in use calculations. The valuations were carried out
by an independent valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, who
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar businesses. The Group's management has
discussed with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuations were performed. The
recoverable amount of Mianning Mao Yuan was determined
based on its value in use calculations using cash flow projections
approved by management covering a 5-year period (2014:
5-year period). The discount rate applied to cash flow projection
was 23.02% (2014: 22.01%) and cash flow beyond the 5-year
period was extrapolated using a steady 3.12% (2014: 3.12%)
per annum growth rate. The growth rate used did not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the rare earth industry.
Management determined the budgeted sales and gross margins
based on past performance, market trends of the rare earth
industry and planned production strategy. The discount rate
used was pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to rare
resources industry.

g

=~

EEXFER -_ZE—OMFNLA=FTHE =T

A=+—B2EBHEEDERBEREE
BHEEIT-HEDBRB L HEMES B RTE
BRAFET ZARBEEEEEARRAEM
E¥BETHAZIRLR AEEEREDZR
EATHER BEEMTREERRREELS
R-BEKRZAKESEDANALEREIE
MERAFTHE (ZZ—WNF - AFHMIZES
MEEH RRBREABESEFEZET -BER
EEBFMAZITAEAE23.02% (ZFT—MF:
22.01% ) MHBARFHE B RENER
BrFEgRER312% (2T —ME:3.12%)#
H-FTAYRERWEBBH T TEZREATHY
RE-BEERBBALR BHTEZMHE
MEMEEERKETCEEHERENE - ATH
WIREDHAITIRE - RBREHEERITENAS
2B R -

[ 4

R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 14. PEARBELHEZEE A& (B)

(continued)

Based on the valuation at 30 September 2014, the recoverable
amount of Mianning Mao Yuan was found to be less than
its carrying amount. Accordingly, impairment loss on assets
classified as held for sale of approximately HK$22,613,000 had
been recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

The Directors considered that as at 31 March 2014 the
recoverable amount of Mianning Mao Yuan exceeded its
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and
accordingly, no impairment loss had been recognised for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

In accordance with HKFRS 5, when a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale or included within a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated or
amortised.

REBR-_Z-—NEAA=1tBEZHE 2BEXR
ZAREcEEETACREREE-Bt B
RBE-_Z-—RAF=ZA=1t—ALFEZ2HEE
KWREPBERDEARELECEEZRER
¥84922,613,0005 7T °

BE=ZRR/ M_Z-WF=A=1+—-H BEX
BRzAWESHEBBEAMEERBERTF
EOAM TEAEBEE-Z-ME=A=+—H
I FERRMERE -

REEBWERELEST ZHERPDEER
DERBERERF ARSI BAFIEHEZ T
EEMNA BT ESR -

2015 2014
—E-hfF —F—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash flows from rare earth refinery and MEIAMIEBZReSRE:
processing business:
Net cash inflows (outflows) from KEEBHz2RHERA ORD) F5E
operating activities 88 (132)
Net cash inflows (outflows) BaemA Rt ) 58 88 (132)
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(continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ®mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BHE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 14. PEARBELHEZEE A& (B)

REMBRFEFER DBERFHELEZEERE

sale as at financial year end date were as follows: BzEE2HBIMAT:
2015 2014
—E2-RfF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment M- BE RHE - 114,073
Intangible asset EREE - 409,314
Land use rights &b i A2 - 5,441
Goodwill S - 174,989
Inventories (note a below) FE (FTxXMiFa) - 22,585
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K A A AR 1E - 31,700
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) RekBReF@EER (WMWit22) - 73
Assets classified as held for sale PERABEEECEE - 758,175
Trade and other payables ERE S REAMEKRE - (186,907)
Other borrowings (note b below) HMEE (FXHiEb) - (325,002)
Deferred taxation R 1A - (1,383)
Liabilities directly associated with assets HABARKIELEZEE
classified as held for sale BEEMEBACAE - (513,292)
Net assets directly associated with BEOMARRFIEFHECEAE
the assets classified as held for sale HERBAZFEE - 244,883
Cumulative income recognised in other REMEERAEREBY RS
comprehensive income relating to the BIEHEZEE AEZ
assets/liabilities classified as held for sale: ES 0 /N
Foreign exchange translation adjustments SMNEE F B 7,523 10,947

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4Ff 1 1 3




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-ZZT-—RAF=A=+—HIFE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

4. 2EABFHEZEE "&FE (F)

(a)

Notes: it
Inventories comprised: (a) HFEBRIE:
2015 2014
—E-If —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials B - 2,435
Work in progress ERm - 19,088
Finished goods L - 1,062
- 22,585

Other borrowings included two loans (“Loan A” and “Loan B")
obtained by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Jumbo
Wealth International Limited (“Jumbo Wealth”), from independent
third parties. Both Loan A and Loan B were guaranteed by
the Company. Lender of Loan A, Hondex Investments Limited
("Hondex"), had the right to demand the Company to transfer a
maximum of 25% equity interest in Mianning Mao Yuan to the
lender in the event of a default to repay the loan by Jumbo Wealth
or the Company on due date.

On 19 September 2013, the Company and Jumbo Wealth entered
into a subscription agreement with Hondex, Hondex subscribed for
500,000,000 shares of the Company at a subscription price HK$0.1
each for a consideration of HK$50,000,000, which was settled by
way of capitalisation of part of Loan A (see Note 28).

In accordance with the first supplemental agreement signed on 25
March 2013, the loan principal, outstanding interest and additional
interest on Loan A were due for full repayment in December 2014.
On 28 March 2014, the Company and Jumbo Wealth entered into
a second supplemental agreement with Hondex to extend the
due date for full repayment of loan principal together with the
outstanding interest to 30 June 2015. Hondex agreed to waive all
additional interest calculated up to 30 September 2013 payable
pursuant to the first supplemental agreement and to adjust the
loan interest rate from 11.5% to 5% per annum with effect from 1
October 2013 and to adjust additional interest rate to interest free
for the period from 1 October 2013 to 30 June 2015.

1 1 4 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #lE1R442 AR A R)

HMEEREARAR —ME2EWE 2R 5 Jumbo
Wealth International Limited ([Jumbo Wealth |)
REBIE=FRBZMEER ([ERFIRIER
Z,1) IR AR RER f§lumbo Wealthsi AR A
AIRERERIBRERER MERFZER
AHondex Investments Limited ([Hondex ] ) & #
ERARAAEEBEEERRRZ25%KKE -

RZZE—Z=ZFhLA+1B ' EA2Q7F kJumbo
Wealth#iHondexz] 37 32 f§ 1 5% * Hondex AR i (&
Y0178 7328 500,000,0000% A 2 BIRE(D - KRB
/50,000,000 7T - ZERBELEBEBHBERFT
BERbz N EE (RA728) -

BER-_T—=F=R=-+ABHEIZE—HA
ThE BERXRR2EREE REEME KEIH
MERZZE—NF+_ANBHERERE - R =%
—MFE=A=+//\A K2 AKJumbo Wealthf
Hondexi] Y E M # A H#E  WEEHEEER
A BERAEEFNEZINHEAEREE_T—1F
/\)EJ*JrEI Hondex[R B # R RIEBEFE — %
HEMNEZE—=ZFNAZTHLEZEHE
9|\$‘J,%\'SI£HT¢EM*‘J$EE¢11.5E§J§¥§$5
B BZT—=F+A—BREZ BRRARKE=
E—=F+A—HEZZE—HFAA=1TAHHH
ZEINNEREERE



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

In accordance with the first supplemental agreement signed on 25
March 2013, the loan principal, outstanding interest and additional
interest on Loan B were due for full repayment in December 2014.
On 28 March 2014, the Company and Jumbo Wealth entered
into a second supplemental agreement with lender of Loan B to
extend the due date for full repayment of loan principal together
with the outstanding interest to 30 June 2015 and the lender of
Loan B agreed to waive all additional interest calculated up to
30 September 2013 payable pursuant to the first supplemental
agreement as the subsidiary had early repaid part of the loan
principal of RMB16,000,000 during the year and to adjust the loan
interest rate from 13.5% per annum to interest free with effect
from 1 October 2013 and to adjust additional interest rate to
interest free for the period from 1 October 2013 to 30 June 2015.

All other terms and conditions in the supplemental agreements
remained the same as those of the original loan agreements.

The Directors considered that Loan A and Loan B together with
interest accrued thereon would be included in the negotiations
for the sale of the rare earth refinery and processing business as
such borrowings and interest payable were reclassified to liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale accordingly.

In February 2015, the Company provided a shareholder loan
to Jumbo Wealth to enable it to repay Loan A and Loan B and
completed the disposal of a group of subsidiaries including
Mianning Mao Yuan (Note 31).

(b)

4. 2EABFHEZEE "&FE (F)

Brat - (K&)

(#)

BER-_Z—==F_-+ABEIT2E—HH
e BEROZERAS  KEEF S REINF
BRZT—NE+_REBMBHEE - R —N
F=A=Z+N\H A28 Klumbo Wealthf E
L2 EBERANT L E—Mxhz UWEEHEER
FAGERABENEZIBATEREE_Z—H
FRAZTA BERCOZERAREHEIRIE
E—DHAREMEMNTE=_S—=F1LA=+
Bitz2HaMF e (REAZMBRARIBERE
ARFIEE DS BER A2 AR 16,000,0007T ) 2
BEFRMNERSFI3SEARERS B2 —=
FHA-—BREN BUYRBE_ZT—=F+A5
—HE-T-RAENA=Z+ BB EINFXRH
BEEEB-

IR 2 TR B IR R G R B
EoE

BERR EHHERMLAMIEBH AR
RRRERCEREFNE RESZERHER
RENANSEHEEN D BRESBABIELEL
AEBEERBEBCEE

NZZT—AF=A AARMIumbo WealthfZ it
—E2RFER BEERERFRENRZS I X
REEREEERREN —AWB AR (A7
31) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BMERRE
Leasehold Leasehold Furniture
Leasehold land and improve- Plant and Motor and
buildings buildings ments  machinery vehicles fixtures Total
AELHR
HERF Br BENERE  BEREE RE BAREE @3t

HKS000 SO0 HKSOOD  HKSUOO AKSUOD  HKSUOO HKSTOOD
TET FEL TET TEL TET TEL TET

Note)
(i)

Cost Ak
At 1 April 2013 RZF-Z4MmA-A 7,882 4,246 1,656 28,926 2,099 1,667 46,476
Additions e | - - - - - 51 51
Disposals HE - - - - (101) (638) (739)
Exchange realignment EiAE 149 80 31 546 U 10 840
At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=1-A 8,031 4,326 1,687 29,472 2,022 1,090 46,628
At 1 April 2014 R-F-MEmA-A 8,031 4,326 1,687 29,472 2,022 1,090 46,628
Additions ik - - 825 - - 617 1,442
Exchange realignment EiAE (10) (5) - (37) 2) (1) (55)
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-1§=f=1-A 8,021 431 2,512 29,435 2,020 1,706 48,015
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment & BHERHE
At 1 April 2013 RZF-Z#MmA-A 1,126 4,087 1,034 10,700 1,290 1,364 19,601
Depreciation provided for the year TEENERE 391 18 634 3,840 216 17 5216
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - - - (32) (638) (670)
Exchange realignment EiAE 2 77 19 202 9 6 335
At 31 March 2014 RZE-IE=A=1-A 1,539 4182 1,687 14,7142 1,483 849 24,482
At 1 April 2014 R-E-MEMA-A 1539 4,182 1,687 14,742 1,483 849 24,482
Depreciation provided for the year TEENERE 391 18 83 3747 134 146 4519
Exchange realignment EHHE 2) () - (19 (1) (1) (28)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-1§=f=1-A 1,928 4,195 1,770 18,470 1,616 994 28973
Net book values REFE
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-1§=f=1-A 6,093 126 M 10,965 404 12 19,042
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-BE=f=t1-H 6,492 144 - 14,730 539 24 2,146
Note:  As the prepaid land lease payment cannot be allocated reliably M BAREMNLMAERBEBTER T HREFHS

between the land and building elements, the entire lease Ao A2 HHERERESTES

payment is included in the cost of land and buildings as a FPERIEI6RRYE BMERRFHLMEEE

finance lease in property, plant and equipment in accordance BER L RIEFRAZA-

with HKAS 16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. ¥ BERRE (&)
Depreciation expense of HK$4,017,000 (2014: HK$4,056,000) WEBRIZF 4,017,000 T (=ZF — W4
has been expensed in cost of sales and HK$502,000 (2014: 4,056,000 T)EREERARF ZIH M
HK$1,160,000) in administrative expenses. 502,000t (= F — M4 : 1,160,000/ 7T ) A
RITIRE AR -

R_ZE-—RAF=A=+—H FA&EHEHER
6,093,000/ 7t ( —Z — M4 : 6,492,000/% JT )
ZHEBFEER UERAEEER ZIRT

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s leasehold buildings with
carrying value of HK$6,093,000 (2014: HK$6,492,000) are
pledged to secure bank borrowing granted to the Group (Note

25). B8 (Hi25) -
16. LAND USE RIGHTS 16. tihfEFARE
2015 2014
—E—-HF —E-{mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 April RPUA—H 13,459 13,210
Exchange realignment I H 3% 17) 249
At 31 March W=ZA=+—8H 13,442 13,459
Accumulated amortisation B ]
At 1 April W A—H 2,023 1,499
Charged for the year REENR 495 495
Exchange realignment & W 3% (3) 29
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 2,515 2,023
Net book value REEE
At 31 March W=ZA=+—8H 10,927 11,436

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s land use rights with carrying
value of HK$10,927,000 (2014: HK$11,436,000) are pledged to
secure bank borrowing granted to the Group (Note 25).

R_ZE-—RAF=A=+—H FAEHEHER
10,927,000 7t (ZZF — M4 : 11,436,000/
Tzt MECERR WERANEEER
ZRITEE (M aE25)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL 17. &
2015 2014
—E-hfF —F—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost 2N
At 1 April and 31 March REA—BR=A=+—8H 23,592 23,592

At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the amount represents
goodwill arising from acquisition of 80% equity interest in Zibo
Liyuan Gamma Ray Technologies Co. Limited during the year
ended 31 March 2010.

Impairment tests for goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the group of cash-generating units (CGU)

comprising the gamma ray irradiation services segment.

The recoverable amount of the gamma ray irradiation services
operation has been determined based on a value in use
calculation, which uses a cash flow projection based on financial
forecast approved by management covering a 5-year period
(2014: 5-year period). The pre-tax discount rate applied to
cash flow projection is 22.09% (2014: 24.54%) and cash flow
beyond the 5-year period is extrapolated using zero (2014: zero)
growth rate. The recoverable amount of the CGU of gamma ray
irradiation services segment is higher than the carrying amount.
Accordingly, no impairment loss charge needed to be made
against the goodwill as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.

Management determined the budgeted sales and gross margins
based on past performance, expectation for the market
development and planned production strategy. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to gamma ray

irradiation services.

1 1 8 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #lE1R442 AR A R)
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AEHENE

RETREIR AERESEZREMNBIER
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fiz]) e

P35 51 AR PR RIS 78 2 FJ R B S R THIR(E R B
B EZETE MERBEFNEENBEERE
HEZAFH(ZE-—0NF AFH)PHER
TR RERA R REFRMEMR 2K
ATHTIR % /22.09% (=T — U4 :24.54% )
BAREFHzZRERENAT(ZT—HE:
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—AFZA=Z=+—BARZZE-WNF=ZA=+—
RHARHBEHRREBEX -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 18. AIHHESRMEE
2015 2014
—E-hfF —F—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Unlisted investment, at cost SEEME/E WA 9,300 -

19.

20.

The unlisted investment is measured at cost less impairment at

the end of the reporting period because it does not have the

quoted market price and the Directors are of the opinion that

HMRIELTRETEDTSRE BEETRRREE
A SME EEATE Sl FETRERERS
HARZRAHNBRETE - A EBEEBOIHH

its fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not EHE-
intend to dispose of it in the near future.
INVENTORIES 19. &8
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-lF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Food and beverages R & 600 -
Retail stocks TEFE 226 -
Fuel oil R H 1,123 -
1,949 -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20, EREZ REMIRE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZET—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables I E 5 ER1E 16,851 255
Other receivables and prepayments E fth JE YT AR I8 I TR 5 FRIB 75,403 56,607
92,254 56,862

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the above trade and

other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as

expense within one year.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

other receivables approximate to their fair values.

EERR LAMBRKES REMRRE A

A—FARERER R/ -

E=ZRREUEIREMEBEZERERALR

FEAE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EWES REMRE (F)
The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to 90 AEEGTHESEPFHN T60HEIHZ
days to its trade customers. The following is an analysis of trade FEBH - UTREREZAH2I 2 EKE FHEE
receivables by age, presented based on the invoiced date. The BREST - UT 2T —NFESTEESHA
2014 analysis below included those classified as part of assets SERFIELHEZEERRN (EMBRREERE)
classified as held for sale, net of allowance for doubtful debts: &

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Up to 30 days 30H R 11,176 22,545
31 to 90 days 31290H 5,675 36
91 to 365 days 912365H - 177
16,851 22,758

The movements on the allowance for impairment are as follows: RMEBE2EEHWT
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—lmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year RE ] - 2,632
Uncollectible amount written off 88 K U Bl B - (2,632)
At end of the year REE - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EWES REMRE (F)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not AEBRREARECEREZIRBERRN
considered to be impaired is as follows: s

2015 2014

—E-4LfF —E-lE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Not yet past due i 7 780 B 11,176 220

Less than 6 months past due B H D R 6ME A 5,675 35

16,851 255

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting RBEHRAERZZESEERR A L SIERE

period is the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned WRB2 ATE AEBWERZSERTEE

above. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit ERRIEMERER BN EEERZRI

enhancements over these balances. All of the other classes WEATBEMERE S REMEER AR E
within trade and other receivables are neither past due nor A e

impaired with good credit quality.

Included in trade and other receivables is the following amount ERE S REMBKEBEETINAAQANEE
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of BN EE BB

the Company to which they relate:

2015 2014

—E-HF —E-MmF

‘000 ‘000

FT Fir

Renminbi AR 1,922 9,654
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 21. BAFEFAERZZEMEE
OR LOSS
2015 2014
—E-FF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed securities held for trading: BEEBEZ EWHEF !
— Equity securities — Hong Kong —BRARESF-BE 110,752 19,604

At 31 March 2015, the Group's listed securities of aggregate
carrying amount of HK$109,532,000 (2014: Nil) were pledged
by the Group to secure margin account payable (Note 25).

RZTE—RAF=A=+—H A5EKELE
/5109,532,000/87C ( —T— P& ) 2 FH:E
FEBARBEERE  UEREMNFREPZKE
(Htit25) »

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. ReRBRELEHEER
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZET—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRBE S 106,505 33,453
Cash and cash equivalents RIEEHBRREZRE R
in the consolidated statement of HEEWEL
financial position 106,505 33,453
Cash and bank balances included FADBEARBIEREZHEMERZ
in a disposal group classified Re RBITHES (Hit14)
as held for sale (Note 14) - 73
Cash and cash equivalent in RiGeReRERZRER
the consolidated statement of ReEWIER
cash flows 106,505 33,526
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 22. RERREEHEE (F)

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated FAREMBRARCESRBASEEERER

statement of financial position are the following amounts BETIARRARINEEEANINEE REML 2 &
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of o

the Company to which they relate:

2015 2014

—E-AOfF —ET—mF

‘000 ‘000

Fr Fir

United States Dollars 7T 28 5

Renminbi AR 3,692 3,197

Japanese Yen = 20 20

Malaysian Ringgit BRAEET 1 1

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ENESRHEMERE

2015 2014

—E-AF —E-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables ENE ZRE 2,200 3

Other payables and accruals b FE AR TE M B RT FRE 27,059 29,218

29,259 29,221

BEERR MARNESZREMKRBER AN —
FAXNRERBBAREEZREE -

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the trade and other
payables are expected to be settled or recognised as income
within one year or are repayable on demand.

E=ERRENEIREMEBREZERERZALR
FEMAE -

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate to their fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
The following is an analysis of trade payables by age based
on the invoiced date. The 2014 analysis below included those
classified as part of liabilities classified as held for sale:

23.

ENESREMIRE (F)

NTRERERAHNZENE SERAREK DT -
NIz MELTEREREADBRFIEL

EZaBEENE:

2015 2014

—2-RfF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Up to 30 days 30BA 2,200 20,987
31 to 90 days 31290H - 3
Over 90 days HBi@90H - 38,654
2,200 59,644

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts

BNEZREMEEEBETIARARANESR

denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of BN EE BB S5
the Company to which they relate:
2015 2014
—E—AF —E-lmF
‘000 ‘000
FT Fir
Australian dollars BT 14 14
Renminbi AR ¥ 17,750 19,962

24. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY
The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of
repayment. The Directors are of the opinion that the amount is
not repayable in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is therefore shown as non-current.

1 24 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #lE1R442 AR A R)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25. BITRHEMEER
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-lEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current B
Bank borrowing — secured (Note a) IRITEE-BHEE (fiFa) - 10,063
Margin account payable (Note b) FERFFRARP IE (M itb) 51,333 -
51,333 10,063
Non-current B
Bank borrowing — secured (Note a) RITEE-FBE®T (M iFa) 10,050 -
Other borrowing — unsecured HEE—mEm
- Loan from a company controlled by ——BETEREESZAA
a substantial shareholder (Note c) iRtk 2 B (MfiFc) - 33,500
Placing notes (Note d) REZE® (Mitd) 28,254 18,544
38,304 52,044
Total bank and other borrowings ITREMEESE 89,637 62,107
At 31 March 2015, the Group's borrowings were payable as RZE-—REF=ZA=+—HB AEEENZEE
follows: LU
2015 2014
—E2-RfF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank borrowing repayable ERTHEHEEE ZRITEE
Within one year —FR - 10,063
In the second year F-F 10,050 -
10,050 10,063
Other borrowings repayable ERTHHEEE . HMEER
Within one year —FR 51,333 -
In the second year FF - 33,500
After five years hF & 28,254 18,544
Total bank and other borrowings RITEREMEEERE 89,637 62,107

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4FR 1 2 5




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 25. RITRAEMEE (&)
The carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current FRDEECREAERATENT
borrowings are as follows:

2015 2014
—®B-I%F —E-lE
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE AFHE BREE AEE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Bank borrowing RITEE 10,050 9,032 - -
Other borrowing HMEE - - 33,500 26,869
Placing notes fid & =& 28,254 28,254 18,544 18,544
38,304 37,286 52,044 45,413
The carrying amounts of current bank borrowing and margin BREARINEZRBBRTEERERFREPR
account payable are carried at cost and are approximate to B REEREQNFERS REHEKARYERZ
their fair values. The carry amount of placing notes is carried REREBERMAENTEEQNFEMEE - FRBIR
at amortised cost and is approximate to its fair value. The fair TEER-ZE—RAF=A=Z=+—HZAFED
value of non-current bank borrowing as at 31 March 2015 BEUNEER7IBE(ZE—HF:7.76E2) 5
was based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the BEEZFERB2RESREFE - HMEERZ
borrowing rate of 7.38% (2014: 7.76%). The fair value of the T-NOF=A=+—AZA2FEINBELER
other borrowing at 31 March 2014 was based on cash flows MAEASIEREREZMERR 2 REMESR
discounted using a rate based on the risk free rate of 4.51% and H RURATFESRAHNEZE_ERN-

was within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Borrowings include the following amount denominated in a

currency other than the Company's functional currency, HK

25. MIOREMBEER (F)

EEBSFETINALRNEEE (B) AINE
WREBMLZESWHE:

dollars:
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—F
‘000 ‘000
FT For
Renminbi AR 8,000 8,000
Notes: Hiat -

()

The bank borrowing matures until 16 September 2016 (2014: 23
September 2014) and the average effective interest rate of the
bank borrowing is approximately 7.38% (2014: 7.48%) per annum.
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the bank borrowing is
secured by certain leasehold buildings and land use rights of the
Group (Notes 15 and 16).

Margin account payable as at 31 March 2015 is secured by certain
listed securities held by the Group (Note 21) and carries interest at
prime rate plus 3% per annum.

As at 31 March 2014, the loan was interest free, unsecured and
had no fixed terms of repayment. The Directors were of the opinion
that this loan was not repayable in the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and was therefore shown as non-
current as at 31 March 2014.

On 20 August 2013, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent (the
“Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to place,
through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, the notes up
to an aggregate amount of HK$300,000,000 to be issued by the
Company in the denomination of HK$2,000,000 each (the “Placing
Notes”) to independent third parties (the “Placing”). Pursuant to
the Placing Agreement, the Placing Notes carry interest at 5% per
annum and are to be redeemed on the seventh anniversary from
the respective issue dates of the Placing Notes. The Company may
early redeem in whole the Placing Notes at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount together with accrued interest after
the third anniversary from the respective issue dates of the Placing
Notes. During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Placing Notes in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000 had been issued
by the Company.

On 15 August 2014, the Company and the Placing Agent renewed
the placing period and agreed to place the notes in the remaining
principal amount of up to HK$280,000,000. Details of the placing
and the renewal were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 20 August 2013 and 15 August 2014 respectively.

(@) WABEEE-_Z—A"FAA+AB(ZZ—N
FZE-NFEAAZF=ZA)FH BITEEZ
FHERFENAEBF738E (=T —MF: 748
B) R-E-—RAFE=ZA=+-BR-ZT—HNFE=
A=+—8B SROTEBENLAEEETHEEFR
Tl AR R (W at15K16) »

b)) R-E-—RF=A=+—BZENFREFKE
AAREBAE AT EmESEER (HZ21)
FEEBREENEMIET B -

(0 R-FB-NF=A=+—80 ZFEEFBELE &
ERREEEERP -EERAZEEREAD
BEHREF+—EAREE AR =_F—NO
FZRA=1+—BIRERH-

(d RZZ—=FNA=+A AQaHE-FEER
B([REREDITIREHE ([RESHR#E]) -
Bt ARARABEEBREREBER[HNELERE
NA A TR AT RS 485 5 %300,000,0005% 7T K
517 E 182,000,000 T2 2& ([BEEEE]) T
BUHE=F ([REFHE]) - BELREHE BE
ERZRENESETE  UENENREREZE
THHENFLAFER AQRAREHEE
ZRCETAPREGE-BFTFEUBSERASE
EREAFEZEEERATHENREZR-
REE-_FT-—NE=ZA=+—HLEE AQ7F
B 1T % 4%5820,000,000/8 T2 BLE 24 »

R-Z—WFENA+REB AQRHEEEREES
Be & B - I [Fl B AL & 84 T A~ & §8 /4 %£280,000,000
B EE - ERREFEREEFHEIFE 9
RERARRBYEA-_ZE—=F N \A-THEZ
T-HENATEBZRAMA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTE 26. TERERE

On 8 March 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3
May 2011) to issue 3-years 1% convertible note in a principal
amount of HK$105,000,000 to Mega Market Assets Limited.
Mega Market Assets Limited is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The issue of the convertible note was completed on
17 October 2011.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the convertible note is
convertible at the option of the noteholder into ordinary shares
on or after 17 October 2011 up to and including 17 October
2014 on the basis of one ordinary share with a par value of
HK$0.01 each at an initial conversion price of HK$0.27 per
share, subject to adjustments in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the subscription agreement in certain events.

As a result of the placing of existing shares and top-up
subscription of new shares on 13 March 2013, the issue of
500,000,000 ordinary shares on 27 September 2013 and the
issue of 2,198,840,745 ordinary shares by way of rights issue
on 11 September 2014, the conversion price had been adjusted
from HK$0.27 to HK$0.2422 per share, from HK$0.2422 to
HK$0.2158 per share and from HK$0.2158 to HK$0.1439 per
share respectively.

Unless previously converted, redeemed, purchased or cancelled,
any convertible note not converted will be redeemed by
the Company on 17 October 2014 at its principal amount
outstanding together with all accrued and unpaid interest
thereon. The convertible note carries interest at 1% per annum,
which is payable half-yearly in arrears.

1 2 8 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #5244 AR A R)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)
At initial recognition, the convertible note is separated into a

liability component consisting of the straight debt element and

an equity component representing the conversion options of

the noteholder to convert the convertible note into equity. The

equity component is presented as convertible note reserve in

equity, whereas the liability component is classified under non-

current liabilities. The proceeds received from the issue of the

convertible note have been split as follows:

0]

Liability component represents the fair value of the
contractually determined stream of cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate applicable to
instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without the conversion features. The interest charged for
the period is calculated by applying an effective interest
rate of 7.757% to the liability component since the
convertible note was issued.

Equity component represents the conversion options,
which is determined by deducting the fair value of the
liability component from the proceeds of issue of the
convertible note as a whole.

26.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued) 26. ARREE (B)
The movements of the liability component of the convertible AMBRREABSDERAFE2EEHWT
note for the year are set out below:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-lEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FrET
Liability component at beginning of REVZzBEHD
the year 101,272 94,823
Imputed interest expense (Note 8) HEME M (#iF8) 4,277 7,499
Interest expense FEZH (549) (1,050)
Converted during the year FAREHR (105,000) -
Liability component at end of the year RERZAGBERD - 101,272
During the year, convertible note in principal amount of FRN - AE%A105,000,00008 T2 7] # % =K

HK$105,000,000 has been converted into 729,673,382 ordinary
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.1439
per share (Note 28).

No conversion, redemption or purchase and cancellation of the
convertible note had occurred up to 31 March 2014.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible note
at 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$102,256,000. The fair
value was calculated using cash flows discounted at the rates of
6.85% t0 6.92% based on the borrowing rate plus an adequate
constant credit spread, adjusted for the Group’s own credit risk
and was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

At 31 March 2015, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$245,029,000 (2014: HK$256,908,000), part
of which has not yet been agreed with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department, available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unutilised tax losses as at 31 March 2015 were losses
of approximately HK$10,692,000 (2014: HK$27,564,000) that
would expire in five years and the remaining balance would not
expire under the current tax legislation.

At 31 March 2015, the Group has other deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$30,000 (2014: HK$40,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. These deductible
temporary differences do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. BEBE
The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the NTRERGEAMBRARER ZELEHRIES
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement EBIRRAEFERBEFE 2 EH):
during the current and prior years are as follows:
Others
Hity
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2013 W-B—=#mA—A 1,323
Charged to consolidated income statement (Note 717) BireWam KRR (HFat11) 153
Reclassified to liabilities directly associated BNOBRZHESBARKIELHEZEE
with assets classified as held for sale HERBEZAE (153)
Exchange realignment ME i 5 & 14
At 31 March 2014 WoE-—NFEF=ZA=+—H 1,337
Exchange realignment FE 5, 38 B (M
At 31 March 2015

R-ZEB-HEF=ZA=+-—H 1,336

RZTZ—RAF=ZA=+—8 AEETHEHENE
s M 2 KRB ABIE BB 4 /2245,029,000/8 7T
(ZZ—[4 :256,908,000/8 7T ) » &80 & 5 14
AEBBAERBREE - AR TRETEF R EF)
TR - ME KRR ZERNBEERRELCHEE
E-R-_T—RE=ZA=+—8 HAXPAH
1B 2 B5184910,692,0008 0 ( —ZF — 4 :
27,564,000 70) Al g R B A EIE] - &k T 45
BIBBIRITRA ML &R A -

RZE—RAF=ZA=+—8 AEEAHEMA
RERZER£430,000/ T (ZF — M4 : 40,000
HEIL) c AR A RE N g E A R FLUE B B A 88
AMBEREZE RUERZSUIHENEE
WRIEEFIBEE - BIBRTBEEN - %%
MBEEREZETHEDEBA -

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4Ff 1 3 1




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BA&
Number
of shares Amount
RHEE ]
HK$000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: EREEIIBITZEER:
Authorised: JEJE
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and R-ZZE—=FWA—AH
31 March 2015 ZET-NE=A=+—HK
—ET-hF=A=+—H 15,000,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: B#ITRHE -
At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FMA—H 3,798,681,490 37,987
Issue of shares (Note a) BT (Kita) 500,000,000 5,000
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-—NE=A=+—H 4,298,681,490 42,987
Shares issued by rights issue (Note b) LAgLRR 75 X B ATRR O (M 32D ) 2,198,840,745 21,988
Exercise of share options (Note ¢) TR AR (M atc) 164,500,000 1,645
Issue of shares upon conversion of RER AR FIRREHITRG
convertible note (Note d) (Hietd) 729,673,382 7,297
At 31 March 2015 R-E-HFE=ZHA=+—H 7,391,695,617 73,917

Notes: it

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 19 September 2013
entered into between the Company, Jumbo Wealth International
Limited, a subsidiary wholly owned by the Company, and
Hondex Investments Limited (“Hondex"”), Hondex subscribed for
500,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a subscription
price HK$0.1 each for a consideration of HK$50,000,000,
which was settled by way of capitalisation of part of the loan
due from Jumbo Wealth to Hondex. The capitalised amount of
HK$49,866,000 (after deducting transaction costs of HK$134,000)
was recorded in share capital and share premium at HK$5,000,000
and HK$44,866,000 respectively.

On 11 September 2014, 2,198,840,745 ordinary shares of the
Company were issued at the subscription price of HK$0.068 each
by way of rights issue. The gross proceeds received by the Company
from the rights issue were approximately HK$149,521,000, of
which HK$21,988,000 was credited to the share capital account
and the balance of HK$124,514,000 (net of professional fees of
HK$3,019,000) was credited to the share premium account.
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RIFEARE - ANQF]ZEWEAEumbo Wealth
International Limitedf2Hondex Investments
Limited ([Hondex ] ) RZ=ZF—=F W A+ L HE]
N2 R Hondex AR BB E S IR0.1B LR iR
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LI BB B Jumbo Wealth#: R Hondex .2 #317
BERERME T AEE - B4R £ 549,866,000 T
(B HNRB A HFK A 134,000 7 ) B AR & B (5 %
&% 5 A#&5,000,000% 7T 44,866,000/ 7T °

RZT—MNFNA+—H"2,198,840,745/% A
A E AR A AR 5 2 R R B § 1%0.06875
TTF AT« R A R AR IR 2 FT 15 FRIB 4238
#9/3149,521,0007% 7T - B #121,988,000/% L5t A
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) During the year, 164,500,000 share options were exercised by
the eligible option holders at their respective exercise prices for a
total cash consideration of HK$26,617,000, resulting in an issue of
164,500,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

(d)  During the year, the convertible note with principal amounts of
HK$105,000,000 was converted into 729,673,382 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company at the conversion price of
HK$0.1439 per share (Note 26).

All the ordinary shares issued during the year ranked pari passu
with the existing ordinary shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 August 2011, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) which will expire on 21 August 2021.
The primary purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or
reward to the eligible persons for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group.
Under the Scheme and subject to its terms and conditions, the
board of directors of the Company may at its discretion offer to
any eligible employee, director, or consultant, agent, supplier,
customer or contractor of the Group options to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Such offer shall be open for acceptance
on a day specified in the letter of grant which shall be no longer
than 30 days from the date of the letter of grant. The share
options shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
and taken effect when the duplicate letter of grant is signed
by the eligible person and returned to the Company together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 for each
acceptance of grant of the share options.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, which shall be
at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the
date of offer, (i) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer, and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

28.

29.

B ()
HriE: ()

(0 %" 164,500,00017 B ERE ERERIERSE
NZBBTEETE  BHESREA26,617,000%8
7T+ B 1 % 17 164,500,0000% 5 X E H0.018 7T 2
E@R -

(d) FA-A%£%105000,000/ T2 AT E LT
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding vested or unvested options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time
(the "Overriding Limit").

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other schemes shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of shareholders’ approval
of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). Subject to the
Overriding Limit, the Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting, provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit so refreshed
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares as at
the date of shareholders’ approval of the refreshment.

The maximum number of shares (issued and to be issued) in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme
and any other schemes to any eligible person in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue, unless a shareholders’ approval has been
obtained.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates must be approved by the independent non-
executive directors. Where share options are proposed to be
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director, or any of their respective associates, and the
grant would result in the aggregate of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted or to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of offer of the
relevant share options to (i) represent in aggregate over 0.1%
of the total number of issued shares for the time being; and
(ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares, in excess of HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant shall be
subject to the approval of the shareholders in general meeting
with the connected persons abstaining from voting in favour.

1 34 REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited #l&1R442 5 A 1R A &)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE-_T—AF=A=+—HILFHE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme during such period as may be determined by the board
of directors (which shall not be more than 10 years commencing
on the date on which the share option is granted and accepted).
Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors, there
is no minimum period for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised. Subject to early termination by the
Company in general meeting or the board of directors, the
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on its date of adoption.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
165,500,000 (2014: 284,000,000) share options outstanding
under the Scheme which represented approximately 2.24%
(2014: 6.61%) of the Company’s shares in issue at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 165,500,000 (2014: 284,000,000) additional shares and
additional share capital of HK$1,655,000 (2014: HK$2,840,000)
and share premium of HK$24,825,000 (2014: HK$43,452,000)
(before issue expenses).

29. BRESTE (&)

BReEAINEZEEET 2 HE (M5B EBK
BEERERA AR TF) AREZTE 2
BHRITE-BREFERTEEIN LEREATT
BRI VARABREZ SRR - R AR B
RREXEFEGRFEULMEB - ZA BB RERHA
BHEst T F MR R R ER-

REEBR - AR AE%aTE T~ 4F165,500,000
7 (== — P94 : 284,000,00017 ) B A% 4 14 K
TE-HEARARZBEETRMN 22.24%

ZE-NF:661%) WEAQRAEMZE
AR BEHATERRITEERES SR
165,500,0000% ( == — U4 : 284,000,0004% )
BN D R BB NI 21,655,000 7T (= F — Y
£ :2,840,000/% 7T ) & A% 17 % (824,825,000
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Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4Ff 1 3 5




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following tables disclose details of the Company's share

29. BRESTE(8)
TEHEES EERENMMEE 2 AR AER

options held by Directors, employees and consultants and ERREBEZAERE CBREZSHFS-
movements in the share options granted under the Scheme.

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE-Z-AF=ZA=+—HLFE

Number of share options

RRERE
Weighted
average closing
share price
Granted Exercised Lapsed immediately
Exercise price Outstanding during during during  Outstanding before
Grantee Date of grant per share Exercisable period  at 31.03.2014 the year the year the year at31.03.2015  exercise date
b3
R-g-RE R-%-3f BEEET)
=ZA=t-H ZA=+-A R METS
ERA RiLAH BRTHEE iEEE LR FRRiL ERfTR FREH LESiNd L
HKS HKS
Az Az
Directors
Ez
Wong King Shiu, Daniel 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 /A
Sk TER
Lee Kuang Yeu 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 /A
FET @R
Ma Kwok Hung, Warren 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 /A
e TER
Chow Siu Ngor 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 N/A
PME @R
Wong Hoi Kuen 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 /A
AR TER
Chan Chi Yuen 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 /A
REE @R
Hung Hing Man 23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 /A
HLEX TER
Employees 27.07.2012 0.163 27.07.2012-26.07.2014 99,000,000 - (99,000,000) - - 0135
[
23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 178,000,000 (65,500,000) - 112,500,000 0.160
Consultants and other 27.07.2012 0.163 27.07.2012 - 26.07.2014 185,000,000 - - (185,000,000) - /A
eligible participants T#ER
ERRAMAERSEA
23.09.2014 0.160 23.09.2014 - 22.09.2016 - 42,000,000 - - 42,000,000 /A
@R

284,000,000 231,000,000  (164,500,000) (185,000,000) 165,500,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BRRERTE (8)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
Number of share options
BRiER
Weighted
average closing
share price
Granted Exercised Lapsed immediately
Exercise price QOutstanding during during during  Outstanding before
Grantee Date of grant per share Exercisable period &t 31.03.2013 the year the year the year at31.03.2014  exercise date
25
RZE-ZF RZZ-MmF  fTRAMA
=A=t-H ZA=T-8  RAnETY
EEA RiLAH BRITERE AR HR BRI ERFL ERIR ERKR WA W fE
HKS HKS
BT B
Employees 27.07.2012 0.1630 27.07.2012 - 26.07.2014 99,000,000 - - - 99,000,000 N/A
k& TER
Consultants and other 27.07.2012 0.1630 27.07.2012 - 26.07.2014 185,000,000 - - - 185,000,000 N/A
eligible participants T#ER
BEREMEERSHA
284,000,000 - - - 284,000,000
No share option has been granted, exercised and cancelled REBEE-_ZT—NFZA=Z+—BHLFE TER
during the year ended 31 March 2014. 1768 No 5 8 £ o] B AR ©
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for REBEZE-_Z-—AF=A=1T—RLFE 20F
share options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2015 BIRENITER Z MEFHRER0. 1468 7T
was HK$0.146.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the fair value of the REEZE_ZT-—HEF=A=+—HLFE 2%
share options granted was HK$6,422,000 and the Company SR 2 A F (/86,422,000 7T © A2 A
recognised share-based payments of HK$6,422,000 (Note 9). R AR A E T 2 (7 506,422,000% 7T (K5t

9) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted is
estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model (the “Model”), taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Details of
the fair values of share options determined at the date of grant
using the Model with significant variables and assumptions are

as follows:

29. BRESTE (&)

BRI AR 45 3 2 MR H) A T E R R B
SEAE N T — A R R (R
féi &t S 2 % 5 B AR 2 (R R - 5
BRER B A MU RRRET 2 ATERE
AEERBREEDT :

Date of share
options grant

23.09.2014

BRESHAH

—E-NF

AB=+=H

Exercise price (HK$) 11818 (&or) 0.16
Dividend yield BB = 0%
Expected volatility T8 B 1R 45.40%
Risk-free interest rate £ [, Ry ) 2 0.09%
Expected life of option (year) T8 HR B IR ke B U ER () 1
Closing share price at grant date (HK$) BBz BRHWTHE (Er) 0.16

The expected volatility, which is based on the approximate
historical volatility of closing prices of the share of the Company
in the past one year immediately before the date of grant,
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome. The risk-free interest rate represents the yields to
maturity of respective Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at
the share options grant date. The expected life of the options is
based on the historical data and is not necessarily indicative of
exercise patterns that may occur.

No other features of options grant were incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

30. RESERVES

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for, and the nominal amount of, share
capital of its subsidiaries acquired at the date of a previous
group reorganisation.

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

Convertible note reserve represents the amount allocated to the
equity component of convertible note issued by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible note in Note 4(p).

The share options reserve represents the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to accumulated
losses should the related options expire or be forfeited.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Company,
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of a previous group reorganisation; the
cancellation of an amount of approximately HK$48,000,000
from the share premium account of the Company and the
credit of an amount of approximately HK$610,247,000 of the
Company's share capital cancelled in 2002 and the contribution
of approximately HK$26,719,000 from the placing of warrants
in 2002 that had expired in 2003.

30.

1
AEBZENFEEBEEARANBEEEEMAA
s BB AR R AM BT ZRAE
EUEZEWBARARAHER ZZHE -

HEAREBIEB 2 FEERAIEER SR
BEAKE2ER (BT AR CELEZR
TYEERE M2 E R AR IR E S FEE R -
ZEREA BRI ZELZERNHEEINE

BREMSEEERR-

HRREEREEREARBMBETIREERZ
R BB D B2 5K AR R TR IEHT E4(p)
AR R B TR 2 AT IR EE TR -

BREMEACRBERMRTEZBRENR
FE-ERMBERERITER  BRSESER
ERy i B BB BB RERER IR
o Bl = 25 R

REBZHABBBARDAMKEZHB AR
REEBHZGEREECHBEAEEEHEE
BB BT 2 ARRRNEERZ 25 8
ANA B 5% B IR E 7 4948,000,00078 70 - A K
RZTTE-FHEHZARNARRAL610,247,000
BILERE UERR _ZEZ_FRENZTZT =
FE M2 RIRERE 2 P15 KB 426,719,000
Tt

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4FR 1 3 9




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES (continued)

31.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at 31 March 2014 and
31 March 2015.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 November 2014, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of its entire equity interest in the Jumbo Wealth International
Limited, Chongging Xujing Property Management Limited
("Chongging Xujing”), Yunnan He Da Investments Company
Limited (“Yunnan He Da”) and Mianning Mao Yuan Rare Earth
Technology Company Limited (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Disposal Group”) and shareholder loan due by Jumbo
Wealth to the Company for an aggregate consideration of
HK$340,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The Disposal was completed
on 3 February 2015. The net assets disposed of at the date of
disposal were as follows:

30. f#fE (&)

31.

REBRE-NN—FQRDE (KEFT) AR
AZBABBIRAIE DR - AT i HIRTIE
R AARRBTFEBARBRE RIORNRE R
fEH DK :

(@) ARREERBNELIRNEBEEEERD
Haf %

(b)y ARREEZAZREESELMIRE
BE HEEHTRARKRODEER=5F2

B
EERA R-T-NE=A=+—AR_-F
—REZA=+—A ARFLWTESETR
R

HEMHE DR

RZZE—NOF+—A+NA - AQAIH—F
BUE=ZFITVEERERS UEEERNumbo
Wealth International Limited - EEE S EE
BERAR([EERER]) ZEMNEREAR
AE([EEME]) REEZKRB L RHEER
AR (R TXHBIHESERE]) 22 BRAER
LA K Jumbo Wealth#E R A AR ZREEF - £
{8 5340,000,000% T ([HEFE]) - E
FEHER - ZE—AF_AZAxK -RHEEHE
HEHEZFEENT

HK$'000

FET

Property, plant and equipment M- BB R 113,361
Intangible asset mAE 406,757
Land use rights T A 5,407
Goodwill kS 151,395
Inventories wE 22,443
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 Kk K bR 1 9,580
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEHEEL 161
Amount due to the Group JEN AL EFRIE (253,621)
Trade and other payables ENE S REAMKRIE (165,231)
Shareholder loan (note) BRER (Hat) (281,504)
Deferred taxation RAE T IA (1,374)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 7,374
Wavier of balance due from the Disposal Group ReRWLEEELEH 253,621
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31.

32.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ®mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BHE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

31, HEMEAR (E)

HK$'000
FET

Assignment of shareholder loan (note) HERRER (M7 281,504
Direct cost incurred for the Disposal HESHELAZEERAE 971
Non-controlling interests FE 7 AR 4 25 (173,110)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of BB AR FEER N EREER

the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from BENMOEREREBE RETELEZ5

equity to profit or loss on disposal (Note 712) (H1iE12) (5,177)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE (25,183)
Satisfied by: xRHR:
Cash e 340,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRERATFE:
Cash consideration ReRE 340,000
Assignment of shareholder loan HERRER (281,504)
Direct cost incurred for the Disposal HESHELAZHEERAE (971)
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEZRITEHREES (161)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of HEEENBEAREHEZRE R

the disposal of subsidiaries ReFEHEARANFRE 57,364
Note: Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the Company Hiat: BAREERE  AQ AR Jumbo WealthiZ i —%

provided a shareholder loan to Jumbo Wealth to enable it to repay
the outstanding balances of Loan A and Loan B at the date of
disposal (Note 74(b)) and simultaneously the Company assigned the
shareholder loan to the independent third party.

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31 March
2015 contributed approximately HK$Nil to the Group's revenue
and loss of approximately HK$29,336,000 to the Group's loss
from operations for the year ended 31 March 2015.

After completion of the Disposal, the Company continues to
explore opportunities in the resources industry and intends to
invest in potential resources projects in future.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2015, the Group had no significant capital
commitments. At 31 March 2014, the Group had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the purchase of
plant and machinery amounting to approximately HK$352,000.

32.

BREF ZBENHEAREEERFRERZ
ZAREBER (e 14b)) » SR RZ LB
FE=NEEBERER-

REBEE-_Z—AFZA=ZTHBLEFERMH
EZHBRARREBEE-_Z—REF=-A=+—8H
LHFEAREBZBAEBRNT AT BALE
E 2 & ERIBT R EE 429,336,000/ T °

MHEERETKE  ARRBENERITEERE
A YEBRRKRERAENZERER -

BRERE

RZZE-—RAF=A=+—H FEEUBESRE
REE - RZZ—ME=ZA=+—H ~EE}
BEREABENEAVBHRRAAEAINE
KR 2 B AAHE#9352,00008 7T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

33.

34.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2015, the Company had no significant contingent
liabilities. At 31
guarantees to two lenders in respect of other borrowings
utilised by a subsidiary to an extent of HK$325,002,000. The
Directors did not consider it probable that a claim will be

March 2014, the Company had given

made against the Company under any of the guarantees. The
maximum liability of the Company at 31 March 2014 under the
guarantees by the Company was the aggregate amount of the
borrowings drawn down by the subsidiary and the outstanding
interest payable. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value
of these guarantees was not significant. After completion of
the Disposal, the guarantees provided by the Company to the
lenders of the other borrowings have been released.

Other than those mentioned above, the Group had no other
significant contingent liabilities at end of both reporting periods.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group made minimum lease payments of approximately
HK$4,125,000 (2014: HK$3,075,000) under operating leases
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

33.

34.

RAREE

REZTE—RAF=ZA=+—8 AQRIEEKL
REB-R-_T—NWE=ZA=+—0 K275
— BB ARBAZEMBEERAMEEHEL
325,002,000 L 2 ER -ERR A RIBEEM
ZERRAARARAMELREZ AT R R
T-—NE=ZA=Z+—8 ARQAIREARERZ
BEaBEAZME AR ZEEBRENEN
KRB -EEZRA UEERZAFELTE
K- REHEFHEERE ARAAEMEEZE
FIREZERDERR -

B bt &5 R ERS IR AEBEHEL M
BERZARAE

REHENARE
AEEFARBELZEAOFEHEERENK
#74,125,000% 7T ( =& — M 4 : 3,075,000
L) e

PREREHIR - RSB RE T A HUH S S A K AR
ARERERENT BHOBEMFHET

2015 2014

—E-EF —E—WmF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FrET

Within one year —F R 4,764 452

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises, staff quarter,
warehouses, motor vehicle and cruise ship. Leases are
negotiated and fixed for an average term of one to two years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ®mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BHE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT
(a) Financial instruments by categories (a) ®ZERESZEMIA

35. KRAKREERATETE

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been

applied to the line items below:

FEReRTASHERECEBENT

Financial assets

at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BALEFA
ERREWRESE BEZeREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets as per consolidated REEHBRRRZEE
statement of financial position
At 31 March 2015 R-ZBE-RFE=A=+-H
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 R E MRS
(excluding prepayments) (TBiEEMAHE) 91,613 - 91,613
Financial assets at fair value through IR AFEABHEZEREE
profit or loss (Note 21) (Ha21) - 110,752 110,752
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) BR&MBEEEHBE (Mit22) 106,505 - 106,505
Total #Er 198,118 110,752 308,870
At 31 March 2014 RZE-WE=A=+—-H
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 R EHMIRE
(excluding prepayments) (TBEEMAHE) 56,833 - 56,833
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEABREZEREE
profit or loss (Note 21) (His21) - 19,604 19,604
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) R&NME&FHIEBEE (HiF22) 33,453 - 33,453
Total aEr 90,286 19,604 109,890
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35. MKEAKREERAFETE (B)
MEASUREMENT (continued)
(a) Financial instruments by categories (continued) (a) REMESIze@MIA(E)
Financial

liabilities measured
at amortised cost

RBHERETAEZ
cReE
HK$'000
FET
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of REAHBRREKZAEE

financial position
At 31 March 2015 R-E-HZF=A=1+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 23) ENE 5 REMRIE (f/:i223) 29,259
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of — FE{I M /8~ A I 1= MR AR SRR IE (#7724)

a subsidiary (Note 24) 22,248
Bank and other borrowings (Note 25) RITREMEE (F:225) 89,637
Total Bt 141,144
At 31 March 2014 R-ZB-mE=ZA=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 23) ENE 5 REMRE (f:i223) 29,221
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of — FE{ Mt /8 & A I 1= MR AR SRSk IE (#7724)

a subsidiary (Note 24) 21,839
Bank and other borrowings (Note 25) RITREMEE (F/:225) 62,107
Convertible note (Note 26) ARREE (f7i126) 101,272
Total st 214,439
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BEZT-—RAF=A=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35. KEREERAFETE (E)

MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest

rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising

in the normal course of its business and from financial

instruments. The Group’s risk management objectives and

policies mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse

effects of these risks on the Group by closely monitoring

the individual exposure as follows:

(1) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to investments denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group's assets and liabilities are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
When seeking to optimise the returns on its
funds available for investments, the Group

(b)

B R B H &
REBEBHEBTI - REGERERS®
TRAESzZEVBEKE:  mHRR (21
SMEE [\ B - B R E b R B ER) EER
BEkrBELREB AEERBREEBZ
&ﬂ%ﬂigiqjﬁ’\\ﬁﬂ@fﬂ BEPE AR 2 fd

BlER  RELEFRBRERNER2EET
ﬂﬁv

(1) mEmE
() SMERE
SMNE R R IR R ASNE B E B
2B 2 HERE R MR AR
78 e 2 B IR B o AR Bl 2
EESABBEIZENETRERE
f-mTEATKREES ZOR
ER&R AEBERFEIEBE
HETHRE HEEFEA@R

has certain investments in foreign operations, SN B IR o

whose net assets are exposed to foreign

currency translation risk.

At 31 March 2015, if Hong Kong dollars had RZE—RF=ZA=+—8"
strengthened/weakened by 10% against the E2HEMEERFTIE IS

RMB, with all other variable held constant,
equity would have been approximately

T BT ARBTHE, 82
B10% -+ B4 s iR D 548 49

HK$6,075,000 (2014: HK$8,672,000), lower or 6,075,000 T (=& — I F :
higher. 8,672,000/ 7) °

The sensitivity analysis has been determined BRRE DM T ENRJIMNEE X
assuming that the change in foreign exchange BEENMEAREEMETE

rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the
Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The changes in
foreign exchange rate represent management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rate at that date over the
period until the next annual reporting date.

TERZAEBREARFLEZE
SEEREMERZEMTAE
KRRk FARREZHEMLES
(RERME) T8 - HMERE
TEPEZAZIIEETREE
TEFERS L ZHEA
EREYMNEE RS IR B
(A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(1) Market risk (continued)

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in above
represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit or loss and
equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes. The
analysis is prepared on the same basis for 2014.

Interest rate risk

Except for cash and cash equivalents, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets.
The Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest
rates because the interest rates of bank deposits
are not expected to change significantly.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rate arising from the Group’s margin account
payable.

Margin account payable at floating interest
rates exposes the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Details of the Group’s margin account
payable have been disclosed in Note 25.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. In
order to manage the cash flow interest rate
risk, the Group will repay the corresponding
borrowing when it has surplus funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZEZZT—

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (continued)
(1) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for the floating rate margin account
payable at the end of the reporting date. For
floating rate margin account payable, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liabilities outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates on floating
rate margin account payable had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$128,000 (2014: HK$25,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate margin
account payable.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared
with the assumption that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the relevant
financial instruments in existence at that
date. The changes in interest rates represent
management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in interest rates at that date
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. The analysis is prepared on the same basis
for 2014.

RAFE=ZA=+—-HLFE

35. MKEAKREERAFETE (&)

(b) BABEBERE(E)
(1) mEmEE(E)

(1)

FIE % (&)

LA SRR JE 5 A7 Th AR R 7R ¥R 45 R
RKEBEMNFRERPREZFE
RRETE HEEENTFRER
HREME AW HRENHREH
R AREBEERERFEHR
EEMmMRR-

RZE—RF=A=+—H"
FRHEMEERFIIE G
R ﬁ/# % J_§1—JL%¥J= EE}E'/TQ\
M|, PR{E252 T BIASF
EE B R #128,000
B (ZZF — W4 :25,000%8
ﬁ%f%%mﬁ%uﬁﬁﬁﬁ

FREzF e EEmn, kb
%ﬁo

ECRAERIPDEE-S N EE T RS -§0)
ERMEMRELEMBSR X
RZARRARERFEZERE
b TR B 2 A R L o AR
"""""" BHEZAZMNEREET @
FEREAZHEN - EEEY
FRESIZAIBE BB EH Z 771 -
—E-EFEZAT I RAREE
Rl

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4F4R 1 47




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (continued) (b) HBRMEZE (&)
(1) Market risk (continued) (1) HmEEE (&
(iii)  Price risk (i) 1B E 2

35. KEREERAFETE (E)

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk for the equity investments held by the
Group which are classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Majority of the
Group's equity securities are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market
prices as at the end of the reporting period. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

Listed investments held in the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss portfolio
have been chosen taking reference to their
long term growth potential and returns and are
monitored regularly for performance. Given that
the volatility of the stock markets may not have
a direct correlation with the Group’s investment
portfolio, it is impractical to determine the
impact that the changes in stock market indices
would have on the Group’s portfolio of equity
investments.

At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that an
increase/a decrease of 10% in the market value
of the Group's financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, with all other variables
held constant, loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$11,075,000
(2014: HK$1,960,000). The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in the market value
of the Group's investment portfolio over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is prepared on the same basis for 2014.

The Company is exposed to other price risk
in respect of investments in subsidiaries.
The sensitivity to price risk in relation to the
investments in subsidiaries cannot be reliably
determined due to numerous uncertainties
regarding the future development of these
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (continued)

(2)

(3)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is principally attributable to
trade and other receivables and bank balances. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
It has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made and services are provided to customers
with an appropriate credit history. The customer with
sound payment history would accumulate a higher
credit limit.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in Note 20.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality external credit ratings in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities and the ability to close
out market positions. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines available and sufficient bank deposits to meet
short term cash requirements.

35. KEREERAFETE (E)

(b) MBEBER(E)

(2)

(3)

FEAE
AEEZEERRIZRABKES
T Bt R IR DA KSR AT 8 6 - RS B0
EREETZEERR KNEER
BE UHARAEFEEEELEZ
EPHEEMRIEHRE -8R
REZEFPARERRGEERE

BN EEUE 5 & H B TE T B SR
SEEREERBRZE-—TELEE
IR HIFE20 ©

RITHEHRZEERRER  REAX
SHFREANRTEEERKIBAR
RIFINEBIEEFR2IRTT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35. IBAKREERAFETE (E)
MEASUREMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (continued) (b) BMBEEAEBEZE ()
(3) Liquidity risk (continued) (3) mBELEE (&

TIHFBERAEERZRFEEREER
HremaB(BBMNERD)AH
FEFHRBS MR-

The following amounts are the contractual
undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group’s
financial liabilities (including interest elements) at the
earliest dates the Group requires to pay.

Contractual undiscounted cash outflows

BNEFBRERH
More than More than
Within one year two years
one year but less but less More
Carrying oron than two than five than five
amount demand years years years Total
—FR BB-F BBmMF
REE FEER ESREE  EBIREEF BBRLF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2015 R-B-AF=ZH=+-H
Trade and other payables B SR EAER 29,259 29,259 - - - 29,259
Amount due to a non- FE B B A R FE I BR
controlling shareholder of BREZE
a subsidiary 22,248 - 22,248 - - 22,248
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE 89,637 56,451 11,921 4,500 31,335 104,207
Total @t 141,144 85,710 34,169 4,500 31,335 155,714
At 31 March 2014 R-Z2-WmE=A=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 R H AR IE 29,221 29,221 - - - 29,221
Amount due to a non- FE B B A R FE I AR
controlling shareholder of REZE
a subsidiary 21,839 - 21,839 - - 21,839
Bank and other borrowings {7 REMEE 62,107 11,098 34,500 3,000 22,000 70,598
Convertible note ARRER 101,272 105,572 - - - 105,572
Total st 214,439 145,891 56,339 3,000 22,000 227,230
(c) Capital risk management () EBEXEBRER

AEEEAEERRZEIZBNZERY
EmEREELERBKTEBEZES"
IARABERARERE  KREAREE
REBEREELRBEEE RN UFE
RERERE R RGREEL D E 2
M & -

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (continued)

(0

Capital risk management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which include trade and other payables,
bank and other borrowings and convertible note) less
cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity. The Group’s policy is to keep that
ratio at a reasonable level.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 March 2015
and 2014 are as follows:

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZEZZT—

AFE=ZA=+—-HLFE

35. KEREERAFETE (E)

(0

EXEBER (F)
AEBEEGTERRIREELEARR
B NEREREARSOR (ATEELR
BKFEE)BREFEARAZELZRE
EMZHERETE URREHE KRR E
BHEHEEARE-

BT BB — B $%I&Wﬁ%@%ﬁ
RPHBEAR L REREE R EEARRIE 5L
1t M §'$E@%F%@ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HMEBRENESRAMEKE RITRAE
MEEARATBMEREER)HERERREE
FRIAE - KPBEBEABERAEERLD - K
SEZ BRI Z L R RIFEEGIEKF-

RZE-—HFR-_Z-—OF=A=+—H
ZEBFRYERABERLERMT

2015 2014

—2-RfF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade and other payables JETE 5 K H b BRIE 29,259 29,221
Amount due to a non-controlling JE A< B BB 2 ) 3F 122 R AR R 5K I8

shareholder of a subsidiary 22,248 21,839

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 89,637 62,107

Convertible note — liability component A ¥ ZE - B ELH - 101,272

Total debt (T 141,144 214,439

Less: Cash and cash equivalents - BReRkIReFFEER 106,505 33,453

Net debt &5 F5 34,639 180,986

Adjusted capital — Total equity KRABRER = RE 231,841 196,179

Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BB FEHNCAEAR L X 15% 92%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to either internally or externally imposed capital

requirements.

AR A) 3 E A AT B B A B R AR Bk s
SNz BEARREMRR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (continued)
(d) Fair value measurement
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

3 Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

J Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

3 Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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35. MKEAKREERAFETE (B)

(d) AFPEFFE

(i)

BAFETBZEHEERER

TEREVNAEENBERRIRETIE
EEFEZE#MIARFE TR
FRMBREEMNF135 [ A FER
BIMAEZ=ZEXAFESHETS
B-RTVEFEZERNZREER
MAERZBABBZAIBERREE R
BREETEMT:

. Z-ERE EERE-EBA
25 (RBRAE S A BN E
SR LR PR £ TP
B2 ATE

s F_EMRE ERE_EHAH
B(NABRETHEE—EE
RZBABE BhIEERAE
ATNABERBABB)HEZR
FE-TABREEABELSER
HEMHEN 2B A MK
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d)

Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

35. MKEAKREERAFETE (B)
(d) AFPEHE (H)
() BAFEFEBEZSHEERERE

(#)

Fair value measurements categorised into

AVEGEZHE
Fair value
at 31 March Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=A
=t-B2
AYE - $-F £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2015 —E-1F
Recurring fair value measurements: EHMAFEHFE:
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABGEZ
through profit or loss: SRAE:
- Listed equity investments - FmRAERE 110,752 110,752 - -
2014 —Z-|mEF
Recurring fair value measurements: EHMAFEFE:
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABGEZ
through profit or loss: SRAE:
- Listed equity investments - FmRAERE 19,604 19,604 - -

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015,
there was no significant transfer between investments
in Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level
3.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2014 and 2015 except for non-current bank
borrowing, other borrowings and convertible note
where their carrying amounts and fair values and the
level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed in notes 25
and 26 respectively.

REE-_ZT-—MFR-_T-AF=H
=t-HALEE F-EREF_EZ
MMRETEHRERER  TAE
F-EBzEALHEL-

(i) HFBAFHEIEZLHBEEREEZ
AFE
AN 52 B 32 B A sk 8 X AN B BR 2 & b
TAZERE BER-_T—NER
—E-RAFZA=+-HBZAFEY
mMEAZR HIERPRITEE H
ffE B R AT BBRZEMRI (EREE
BA T RATE D FES R B H
H25R26HE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

36. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with the

36. HEBEALTZRERER

FRC-ANEEENTHEATETERRS &
RRRERARBEEZ &R FBENOT

following related parties, together with balances with them as at
the end of the reporting period, details of which are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ET—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Key management compensation of AEEFZEEEABEHM:
the Group:
Salaries and other short-term employee FehkEMEHEEREA
benefits (Note 10(a)) (Htati10(a)) 1,678 1,155
Substantial shareholders: FERE:
Interest on convertible note (Note 26) AMBRERZFE (KiE26) 47 1,050
Loan from Hondex HondexZ B 3k - 176,415
Interest payable to Hondex JE 1+t Hondex 2 F| & - 50,327
Interest expense for the year FiHondexZ BN F A 2 F B Z
on loan from Hondex 7,443 15,903
A company controlled by a substantial BEZEREZESZAA:
shareholder:
Other borrowing (Note 25) HifgE (Wit25) - 33,500

During the year under review, a substantial shareholder of the
Company provided an office premises to a subsidiary of the
Company, free of rent.

As mentioned in Note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company issued 500,000,000 new ordinary
shares to Hondex which was settled by way of capitalisation
of part of the loan due from Jumbo Wealth to Hondex. As a
result of such loan capitalisation, Hondex become a substantial
shareholder of the Company with effect from 19 September
2013.

The loan from Hondex was guaranteed by the Company and
bore initially interest at 11.5% per annum and the interest rate
was adjusted to 5% per annum with effect from 1 October
2013. The loan from Hondex was included in asset/liabilities
classified as held for sale and further details are described in
Note 14(b).

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
transactions with related parties during the year or significant
balances with them at the end of the year.
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REEFEAN ARRZEEREMAREZH
BEARRMERHBEAZTYE-

LN AR A B IS R KR MY sE28(a)FT il - R A Al M)
HondexZ 77500,000,000f& ¥T Z @M% W E &
iB# Jumbo Wealth# K Hondex 2 S0 BERRE A&
tzFRNBEE - BERBZBI>EREARNL:
HondexB ZZ—=F LA+ BRBKXAEAAQA
ZEERRE-

HondexZ BB A R A ER - § F IR F F X
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ZEE/AfE #E—FSHBRIE 14085 -
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37.

38.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of an
independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately. The contributions
arising from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available
to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees in the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, convertible note in principal amount of
HK$105,000,000 was converted into 729,673,382 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.1439 per share.

On 19 September 2013, the Company issued 500,000,000 new
ordinary shares to Hondex at a subscription price HK$0.1 each
for a consideration of HK$50,000,000 which was settled by way
of capitalisation of part of the loan due from Jumbo Wealth to
Hondex (Note 28(a)).

37.

38.

RKEF S
AEEAEE2HNELREEHTRIERIE S
B ([BEEFE]) RS EADEBHIIER
BeitERl RetltErEerIERERE
LonEMBZEERARBZEENRH A
BURXRTANEGNZEESFA-

BERECHE BRERHEEYALKEERH
WAZ5%mEtEI - mMEBABEBAKAZ LR
£30,0008 70 (ZF — 4 /< A #1 A25,0007%8
T0) Rt EIM R —EIEHERIREB - 8 Bail
Bz B RS EREBR B8 Al
E 2R M E S EMZ R &R A LA R
REFEEMERZRBERK -

THEBEARZEERTEBFER CBERE
BRKEANERE - ZFHBRARLBARER
TEZETADL RERKBMEMELHRZ
AR A SR8 2 o A5 B Bt %R IKAE M AT &1
EE—BEERRIEFBIELEE MK

FEERS

N AL FA105,000,0000 7T 2 7 R EiE
EIRBRESR0.143978 LB /K 729,673,382
RERmECOIAETZARNT LB -

RZFE—=F LA+ NB ' KAAA MHondexZ
#7500,000,000/% ¥7 & @Ak - REE & T RO.1
T R 1B A50,000,0008 7T 0 J5iE B # Jumbo
Wealth#s R Hondex.z 58 5 B 3k (1 i£28(a)) &
NMezHRIEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30. X EMBATFEE
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March REZTE—RAF=ZA=+—H8 AQRZEXENE
2015 are as follows: UNCIES-§ RN

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share Effective
capital/registered proportion
Place of Issued and capital held by of issued
incorporation/ fully paid up the Company?*/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group  Principal activities
KRR
Wi 2 R %
BRITRA AEBFE
EMAL/ BRTR EE/ BRITRE
WELREH Bk BRER BRLH ERLH TEXH
% %
Full Champion Financial Limited B.V.I. Us$3 100* 100 Securities trading
EBRAHES 3% EHEE
New Team Limited B.VI. us$1 100* 100 Investment holding
EBEREE (E REER
Power Rise International Limited B.VI. US$1 100* 100 Securities trading
RBRIHEE (B BEHEE
Prosper City International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51 51 Trading of building
EEEBRERDA B 10077 materials and
provision of
renovation service
RENHE S RiEHEE
R
Shanghai Hualong Construction The PRC US$11,080,000 51 51 Property development
Co. Ltd. H 11,080,000 75 and sales
FEEERRARAR NEBRREE
Sun Spread Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
EREEBRAT EE BT REZK
Super Target Limited B.VI. us$1 100 100 Investment holding
EBEREE (E RERR
Top Field Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
BYMRBRAF B BT REER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. TEMBAAFE (B)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share Effective
capital/registered proportion
Place of Issued and capital held by of issued
incorporation/ fully paid up the Company?*/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group  Principal activities
LN
Wt B 2 R P
BRITRA AEEfE
B3l BRTR HE/ T BRTRA
WELREE it B BRER EARL A BRLA TEXEH
% %
China Gamma Group Hong Kong HK$1 100* 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited &k 18T REER
REMBEE (FE)BERAF
Century Crest Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of cruise ship
WRBRAA % 18T management services
REBHER RS
Oceanic Horizon Limited B.V.I. Us$1 100 100 Leasing
AERTES (B HE
EENARMEREERARF The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property investment
H AR #20,000,0007C NERE
EEFR=RERRITERAT The PRC RMB29,000,000 80 80  Gamma ray irradiation
("Zibo Liyuan") (& &R ) # AR #29,000,0007C services

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

(i35 57 4% R 51 IR 7%

P RS AR R B - Y8 2 BB A ) (B

LREFEERREAEEAFEXEERE
AFEBIRAEECEEFETEAREERLE
ZARFIME AT - EFRBFINEMKE QT
ZEMESRBEBE-
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B mERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 40. XAFZHMBRRARRAESE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company AT Z B MR T
2015 2014
—E-IF —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB RE 21 59
Interests in subsidiaries R E AR Z = 111,894 69,457
111,915 69,516
Current Assets MENE E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B B A R FE 26,934 105,004
Other receivables H fth pE W BR 18 210 104
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEHER 38,410 3,092
65,554 108,200
Current Liabilities mEBAEE
Other payables Hfh fETARIE 2,937 3,215
Convertible note ARk EE - 101,272
2,937 104,487
Net Current Assets MEVE EFE 62,617 3,713
Non-current Liabilities ERBEE
Other borrowings HmEE 28,254 18,544
Net Assets EEFE 146,278 54,685
Capital and Reserves BAR R
Share capital f& A 73,917 42,987
Reserves (Note) & (K 5) 72,361 11,698
Total Equity Wk 146,278 54,685




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB BERME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFHE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued)

40. RARZHBRRERFRES ()

Note: Reserve movement of the Company Hist - KRR ZEEBEES
Share Capital Convertible Share
premium redemption note Contributed options  Accumulated
account reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
E5ER TRREE
R EER e i HABH BRERE RiER ag
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FEr FEr FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1 April 2013 RZZ-ZFMA-BZ
& 692,636 13,878 18,352 907,760 4,532 (1,654,299) (17,141)
Loss for the year rEEHR - - - - - (16,027) (16,027)
Issue of shares Bk 44,866 - - - - - 44,866
Balance at 31 March 2014and ~ RZZ-ME
1 April 2014 ZR=+-Bk
ZE-MERA-AZ
&8 737,502 13,878 18,352 907,760 4,532 (1,670,326) 11,698
Loss for the year rEREER - - - - - (192,948) (192,948)
Issue of shares Bfkin 24,972 - - - - - 24,972
Recognition of share option BRATERRERERT
benefits at fair value - - - - 6,422 - 6,422
Transfer to share premium on RTREREREA
exercise of share options BIDEE 3,401 - - - (3,401) - -
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - - (2,952) 2,952 -
Issue of shares upon conversion of K& A IR Z HE
convertible note BR 116,055 - (18,352) - - - 97,703
Issue of shares by rights issue, net  JAEER S R #4717 - 58 124,514 - - - - - 124,514
Balance at 31 March 2015 RZZ-7%
ZREZT-HzE# 1,006,444 13,878 - 907,760 4,601 (1,860,322) 72,361
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Financial Summary

R E

RESULTS ES

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=+-HLFE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——% ZT-Zf ZT-=F ZT-NF =ZT-EHF
HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET T FET FET
Revenue I@N 30,473 26,726 48,523 41,018 80,564
Loss attributable to equity EN/NSIE 33 S
shareholders of the Company e 518 (29,203) (56,198) (143,475) (51,471) (67,899)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 March
W=ZHA=+-8H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——% - ZT-= —E-mE  ZE-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Fi#r FET Fi#T FET FHET
Total assets BERA 204,748 1,077,098 949,997 925,268 374,321
Total liabilities BEBE 99,606 716,685 759,443 729,089 142,480
Net assets BB FEE 105,142 360,413 190,554 196,179 231,841

Non-controlling interests eI 4,836 249,276 178,604 178,227 4,802
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